
THE ARGYLL AND BUTE LICENSING BOARD 
 

Tel. (01546) 604128 

Kilmory 
Lochgilphead 

 

 
5 September 2022 

 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 

 
 

LICENSING (SCOTLAND) ACT 2005 
 

A meeting of the ARGYLL AND BUTE LICENSING BOARD will be held in the BY SKYPE on 

THURSDAY, 8 SEPTEMBER 2022 at 11:00 AM, which you are requested to attend. 

 

 
Yours faithfully 

 

DAVID LOGAN 
 

Clerk to the Board 
 
To: All Members of the Licensing Board 

 
BUSINESS 

 

 1. APOLOGIES  

 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM LICENSING BOARD MEETING OF 28TH JUNE 

2022  

 4. APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE  

  (a) Hinba Coffee Shop, 62 George Street, Oban, PA34 5SD (Pages 5 - 10) 
 

 

   Summary Sheet attached – Item 4(a) 

 

  (b) You & Sea Marine Services Ltd. Rhu Marina, Rhu, Helensburgh, G84 8LH 
(Pages 11 - 16) 
 

 

   Summary Sheet attached – Item 4(b) 
 

 5. APPLICATION FOR A PROVISIONAL PREMISES LICENCE  

  (a) Iona Craft Shop & Studio, Isle of Iona, PA76 6SJ (Pages 17 - 24) 
 

 

   Summary Sheet attached – Item 5(a) 

 

Public Document Pack



  (b) Islay Rum Distillery. Old Lemonade Factory, Port Ellen, Isle of Islay, PA42 
7BZ (Pages 25 - 28) 
 

 

   Summary Sheet attached – Item 5(b) 
 

 6. APPLICATION FOR MAJOR VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE  

  (a) 108 George Street, Oban, PA34 5NT (Pages 29 - 32) 
 

 

   The licence holder wishes to vary the licence as follows:- 

1)  To add on-sales hours. 
2)  To amend off-sales hours. 
3)  To add private tastings of alcohol with food as an activity on the 

licence. 
4)  To add Children and Young Persons conditions. 

5)  To amend capacity to add on-sales figure. 
 
 

Summary Sheet attached – Item 6(a) 
 

  (b) Slanj, Station Road, Tarbet, G83 7DA (Pages 33 - 38) 
 

 

   The licence holder wishes to vary the licence as follows:- 
1)  To amend the off sales start time from 11am to 10am. 
2)  To amend the wording at Question 5(f). 

3)  To amend the layout plan to show addition of an adjacent adapted 
container to form a standalone grocery shop with off-sales facility. 

 
Summary Sheet attached – Item 6(b) 
 

  (c) Stratheck Holiday Caravan Park, Loch Eck, Dunoon, PA23 8SG (Pages 39 

- 42) 
 

 

   The licence holders wish to vary the licence as follows:- 

1)  To amend the seasonal variation. 
2)  To add accommodation as an activity on the licence. 
 

Summary Sheet attached – Item 6(c) 
 

  (d) The Anchor Tavern, Marine Road, Port Bannatyne, Isle of Bute, PA20 0LL  
 

 

   The licence holders wish to vary the licence as follows:- 
1)  To add bar meals, food to be delivered and takeaways as activities on 
the licence. 

2)  To add Children and Young Person conditions. Currently they are not 
permitted on the premises. 

 
Summary Sheet attached – Item 6(d)  
 

  (e) The Glen Bar & Restaurant, Carradale, Campbeltown, PA28 6QG (Pages 

43 - 44) 
 

 



   The licence holder wishes to vary the licence as follows:- 
1) To add a seasonal variation to allow the premises to close annually from 

7th January to 24th February. 

 
Summary Sheet attached – Item 6(e) 

 

  (f) The Village Shop, Luss, G83 8PA (Pages 45 - 46) 
 

 

   The applicant wishes to vary the licence as follows:- 
1) To vary the opening time on a Sunday from 12.30pm to 10.00am in line 

with the other days of the week. 

 

Summary Sheet attached – Item 6(f) 
 

  (g) Visitor Centre Shop at Laphroaig Distillery, Port Ellen, Isle of Islay, PA42 

7DU (Pages 47 - 50) 
 

 

   The licence holder wishes to vary the licence as follows:- 
1)  To amend the terminal hour for on-sales and off-sales to 22.00. 

2)  To change the premises manager to William Sinclair. 
3)  To add receptions, club or other group meetings and live performances 

as activities. 
4)  To amend the Children and Young Persons conditions. 
 

Summary Sheet attached – Item 6(g) 
 

 7. APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A PERSONAL LICENCE  

  (a) Leah McGuigan, 51B High Street, Campbeltown, PA28 6EA (Pages 51 - 
52) 
 

 

   A copy of the letter to the applicant together with letter from Police 
Scotland dated 8th August 2022 is attached. 
 

 8. GAMBLING ACT 2005  

  Revision of Gambling Policy 
 
Report by the Clerk to the Board together with draft revised Policy Statement 
 
 
 
 

 9. REVIEW OF PERSONAL LICENCES  

  (a) Revocation of Personal Licences where licence holders have not 
undertaken the refresher training (Pages 53 - 54) 
 

 

   A list of personal licences to be revoked is attached. 
 

  (b) Revocation of Personal licences where licence holders have not applied to 

renew their licence (Pages 55 - 56) 
 

 



   A list of personal licences to be revoked is attached. 
 

 10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

  (a) Dates of Licensing Board Meetings 2023.  
 

 

   The date of the February Licensing Board meeting has been amended 

from 21st February to 28th February 2023. 
 

  (b) Festive Hours Policy 2022 (Pages 57 - 58) 
 

 

   A copy of the draft Festive Hours Policy 2022 is attached. 
 

 11. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

  The next meeting of the Licensing Board will be held on Tuesday 8 th November 2022 

at 11.00am. 
 
 

 
Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

 
 Councillor Jan Brown Councillor Audrey Forrest
 Councillor Kieron Green (Chair) Councillor Amanda Hampsey

 Councillor Graham Hardie Councillor Fiona Howard
 Councillor Mark Irvine (Vice-Chair) Councillor Paul Donald Kennedy
 Councillor Luna Martin Councillor Liz McCabe 

   
 
 Contact: Margaret MacLean Tel: 01546 604128 



  ITEM 4(a) 

 

Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

8th September 2022 

APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

 
NAME OF PREMISES: Hinba Coffee Shop, 62 George Street, Oban, PA34 5SD 

APPLICANT:    Fergus James McCoss, Kilbrandon House, Balvicar, Oban, PA34 4RA 

AGENT:    n/a 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: 

Speciality coffee shop located in Oban, on the high street with indoor and outdoor seating. The 

premises is solely occupied in the town centre. The premises will be used as a coffee shop which 

serves alcohol, with light food options throughout the day and cakes. The concept is a relaxing, low 

key environment to enjoy high quality food and drinks, hot and cold, alcoholic and non-alcoholic. 

 LICENSED HOURS APPLIED FOR 

 ON SALES OFF SALES 

Monday 1100 to 22.00 11.00 to 22.00 

Tuesday                     11.00 to 22.00                     11.00 to 22.00 

Wednesday                     11.00 to 22.00                     11.00 to 22.00 

Thursday                     11.00 to 22.00                      11.00 to 22.00 

Friday                     11.00 to 22.00                      11.00 to 22.00 

Saturday                     11.00 to 22.00                      11.00 to 22.00 

Sunday                     11.00 to 22.00                      11.00 to 22.00 

 
ACTIVITIES:- Restaurant facilities; Recorded music and outdoor drinking facilities. 
 
SEASONAL VARIATION:-  None. 
 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PERSONS CONDITIONS:- 
 

Page 5 Agenda Item 4a



  ITEM 4(a) 

 

TERMS – Children of all ages and young persons will be allowed access to the coffee shop for a meal 
while accompanied by a person aged 18 years and over. 
AGES – Children: Birth to 15 years; Young persons: 16 & 17 years 
TIMES – 09.00 to 22.00 
PARTS – Access allowed to all public parts of the premises. 
 
CAPACITY OF PREMISES: - 26 persons. Indoor 14; Outdoor 12 
 
LSO COMMENTS:   This is an application for an on-sales premises licence for sale and consumption 

on the premises with an off-sales facility. 

Description of Premises 

The premises will be a Specialty Coffee Shop, with indoor and outdoor seating, offering a relaxing 

low key environment to enjoy high quality food and drinks, hot and cold, alcoholic and non-alcoholic. 

Operating Plan 

Q1.  On-sales and off-sales 

Q2 & 3. On-sales and off-sales hours will be 1100 to 2200 daily. 

Q4. No Seasonal Variation 

Q5. Activities – Restaurant Facilities; Recorded Music and outdoor drinking.  Premises may open 

prior to the start of core hours but no alcohol will be sold or consumed until 1100.  Recorded music 

may be played prior to core hours start time. 

Q5(b). Use of the outdoor area will cease at 2200 for persons aged 18 years and over and 2000 for 

children and young persons. 

Q6.  Children and young person access statement is in keeping with Board policy.  The Board may 

wish to make the following amendment to the statement in the ‘Times’ box so that the wording 

reflects the curfew on use of outdoor to 2000 – 

Indoors – 0900 to 2200 

Outdoors – 0900 to 2000 

Q7. On-sales capacity total 26 persons. 

Layout Plan 

The layout plan meets the requirements of The Premises Licence (Scotland) Regulations 2007.  

The LSO has no concerns with this application. 

EHO 

Aware of application. No comments received. 

Page 6



  ITEM 4(a) 

 

 

 
 

POLICE COMMENTS:  No Police objections   
 
OBJECTIONS/REPRESENTATIONS:   None 

POINTS FOR CONSIDERATION:- 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  ITEM 4(b) 

 

Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

8th September 2022 

APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

 
NAME OF PREMISES: You & Sea Marine Services Ltd, Rhu Marina, Rhu, G84 8LH 

APPLICANT:    You & Sea Marine Services Ltd, 5 Upper Colquhoun Street, Helensburgh, G84 9AQ 

AGENT:    n/a 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: 

37 foot motor cruiser (boat). Outside and indoor seating area. Carries maximum 12 passengers and 2 

crew. Enclosed toilet. Fully compliant to MCA standards. 

 LICENSED HOURS APPLIED FOR 

 ON SALES OFF SALES 

Monday 11.00 to 24.00                     N/A 

Tuesday                     11.00 to 24.00                     N/A 

Wednesday                     11.00 to 24.00                     N/A 

Thursday                     11.00 to 24.00                      N/A 

Friday                     11.00 to 24.00                      N/A 

Saturday                     11.00 to 24.00                      N/A 

Sunday                     12.00 to 24.00                      N/A 

 
ACTIVITIES:- Bar meals; Celebrations; Funerals; Club or other group meetings and outdoor drinking. 
 
SEASONAL VARIATION:-  None. 
 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PERSONS CONDITIONS:- 
 
TERMS – Children and young persons will be permitted access when accompanied by an adult 18 
years and over. 
AGES – Children: Birth to 15 years; Young persons: 16 & 17 years 

Page 11 Agenda Item 4b



  ITEM 4(b) 

 

TIMES – Children and young persons are allowed entry during general charter times which would be 
between 0600 and 24.00. 
PARTS – As the premises is one boat, the children will be allowed entry to all public parts of the 
premises. 
 
CAPACITY OF PREMISES: - 14 persons. 
 
LSO COMMENTS:   See attached report. 
 

POLICE COMMENTS:  No Police objections   
 
OBJECTIONS/REPRESENTATIONS:   None 

POINTS FOR CONSIDERATION:- 

 

Page 12



LSO REPORT 
 

YOU & SEA MARINE SERVICES LTD, RHU MARINA, RHU, HELENSBURGH, G84 8LH  
(Report by Raymond Park) 

 

An application for a new Premises Licence for a vessel (Jola) owned by the applicant. The 

boat is utilised by the applicant for up to twelve passengers and two crew. The company wish 
to sell alcohol, as part of their commercial boat trips package for tourists/guests.  Although no 

section 50 certificates are required for a vessel, the owner has nevertheless supplied relevant 
safety certification and staff have professional boat qualifications. 
 

The applicant has also supplied photographs to allow the Board members sight of the vessel 
to be licensed. 
 

 
 

Operating Plan 
 
Question 1 Alcohol will be sold on sales only. 

 
Question 2 Core hours; Monday till Saturday 11:00 till Midnight, Sunday noon till midnight 
 

Question 5 Activities to include; Bar meals, receptions, club/group meetings, outdoor drinking.  

 “Boat trips can operate at any time of day and so will possibly operate out with core licensed 
hours but in these case alcohol will not be served” 
 
Question 6 Children and Young Persons. 
 

Terms 

Children and Young Persons will be permitted access when accompanied by an adult 18 years 

or over. 
Ages 

Children 0-15 years Young Persons 16 &17 
Times 
Children are allowed entry during general charter times which would be between 0600 and 
0000. 
Parts 

As the premises is a boat the children and young persons will be allowed entry to all public 
parts of the premises.  
 
Capacity 

12 passengers and 2 crew. 14 people in total 
 

Page 13



EHO  
Is aware and has no issues.  

Page 14



 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



  ITEM 5(a) 

 

Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

8th September 2022 

APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A PROVISIONAL PREMISES 

LICENCE 

 
NAME OF PREMISES: Iona Craft Shop & Studio, Isle of Iona, PA76 6SJ 

APPLICANT:    Iona Fine Arts Ltd., Isle of Iona, PA76 6SJ 

AGENT:    n/a 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: 

The premises comprise two adjacent buildings - a retail shop and a craft studio nearby. The shop has 

operated for some 55 years showcasing Scottish knitwear, accessories and gifts. The Craft Studio is a 

retail and gallery space showcasing Iona Wool, Iona Tweed and accessories alongside a small 

selection of items produced by local businesses, including off -sales of Iona Gin and ad-hoc on-sales 

as part of specific events. 

The premises are located on Iona, close to the jetty and within the mai n village. 

 LICENSED HOURS APPLIED FOR 

 ON SALES OFF SALES 

Monday 11.00 to 22.00                    10.00 to 22.00 

Tuesday                     11.00 to 22.00                     10.00 to 22.00 

Wednesday                     11.00 to 22.00                     10.00 to 22.00 

Thursday                     11.00 to 22.00                     10.00 to 22.00 

Friday                     11.00 to 22.00                     10.00 to 22.00 

Saturday                     11.00 to 22.00                     10.00 to 22.00 

Sunday                     11.00 to 22.00                     10.00 to 22.00 

 
ACTIVITIES:- Recorded music; Live music and outdoor drinking. 
 

Page 17 Agenda Item 5a



  ITEM 5(a) 

 

SEASONAL VARIATION:-  We operate winter hours from November to March as follows:- 
Sunday, Monday and Thursday - Closed 
Tuesday, Wednesday, Friday and Saturday - 11.00 to 3.00pm. 
On-sales of alcohol will be on an occasional basis, linked to specific events, rather than a daily 
operation and will be permitted in the studio and terrace areas only.  
 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PERSONS CONDITIONS:- 
 
TERMS – Children of all ages and young persons will have full access on a day to day basis when no 
on-sales is taking place. On the occasions when on-sales is taking place, this will be part of an 
associated event and children and young persons will be allowed access accompanied by a person 
aged 18 years or over and may remain on the premises for the duration of the event. Access will not 
be allowed to where the alcohol is being served or sold. 
AGES – Children: Birth to 15 years; Young persons: 16 & 17 years 
TIMES – Indoors - Children and young persons between 11am and 10pm. Outdoors - Children and 
young persons between 11am and 8pm. 
PARTS – All public parts of the premises. 
 
CAPACITY OF PREMISES: - 80 persons. 
 
LSO COMMENTS:   See attached report. 
 

POLICE COMMENTS:  No Police objections   
 
OBJECTIONS/REPRESENTATIONS:   None 

POINTS FOR CONSIDERATION:- 

1)  Still awaiting Section 50 Planning Certificate. 

 

Page 18



LSO REPORT 

 
IONA CRAFT SHOP & STUDIO, ISLE OF IONA, PA76 6SJ   

(Report by Eric Dearie) 
 

Description of Premises 
The premises comprise two adjacent buildings – a retail shop and a Craft Studio nearby. The 
shop has operated for some 55 years, showcasing Scottish knitwear, accessories and gifts. 
The Craft Studio is a retail and gallery space, showcasing Iona Wool, Iona Tweed and 
Accessories, alongside a small selection of items produced by local businesses, including off-
sales of Iona Gin and ad-hoc on-sales as part of specific events. The premises are located on 
Isle of Iona, close to the jetty and within the main village. The shop includes retail space and 
associated owner/staff accommodation. The Craft Studio comprises a retail/gallery space and 
a separate takeaway food outlet (sub-leased) and associated lease-holder accommodation. 
 
Operating Plan 
Q1. On-sales and off-sales 
Q2. On-sales hours – 1100 to 2200 daily 
Q3. Off-sales hours – 1000 to 2200 daily 
Q4. Proposed Seasonal Variation – 
 
“We operate winter hours from November to March as follows: 
Sunday, Monday & Thursday CLOSED 
Tuesday, Wednesday, Friday & Saturday 11am - 3pm 
 
On-sales of alcohol will be on an occasional basis, linked to specific events, rather than a daily operation and will 
be permitted in the Studio & Terrace areas only.” 
 

Board policy states: 
 
‘The Management reserve the right to open the business one hour later than the commencement of licensed core 
hours or close one hour earlier than termination of core hours on any day of the week  
during winter months i.e. 1st October to 31st March.’ 

 
Q5. Activities – Recorded Music; Live Performance and Outdoor Drinking. 
Q5(f). Occasional live demonstrations of island crafts or skills i.e. fleece-sorting, weaving, 
knitting, artist-in-residence. Occasional temporary exhibitions of artworks, island produce or 
crafts. 
 
Recorded music will be played as background ambience during shop open hours. Occasional 
live music as part of i.e. seasonal island events or in-shop events 
 
We are aware of the Board policy relating to evening use of the outdoor space and all outdoor 
activities will cease at 10pm for those over 18 years of age, and 8 pm for children and young 
people. 
 
There will be a separate take-away food outlet operating from the premises (sub-leased) and 
the leaseholder holds all necessary permissions and qualifications. 
 
Q6.  The children and young person access statement is in keeping with Board policy. 

Q7. Off-sales capacity (display) – Shop 0.52m² (1.0% of retail space) and Craft Studio 1.0m². 

Q7. On-sales capacity – Craft Studio 80 persons. 
 
Layout Plan 
The layout plan meets the requirements of The Premises Licence (Scotland) Regulations 
2007. 

Page 19



 
The LSO has no concerns with this application. 
 
EHO 
Public Health and Safety 
No concerns – existing craft shop in place.  
 
Potential Noise Nuisance 
It is proposed that “recorded music will be played as background ambience during shop open 
hours. Occasional live music as part of i.e. seasonal island events or in-shop events”. 
It is not anticipated that the above would cause a noise nuisance to nearby noise sensitive 
receptors. However, should complaints be received then these will be investigated 
accordingly.  
. 
 

Page 20



 

IONA CRAFT SHOP - PLAN & IMAGE 
SHOP SPACE INDICATED IN GREEN 

DISPLAY AREA SHOWN IN RED

P
age 21


















Proposed alcohol display area 
Single display shelf  
Width 115cm 
Height 45cm 
(TOTAL 0.52m2/1% of total retail space)

Customer Serving & Till Area

IONA CRAFT SHOP - SHOP INTERIOR AND DISPLAY AREA 

P
age 22












IONA CRAFT STUDIO - PLAN & IMAGE 
GALLERY SPACE AND COURTYARD INDICATED IN GREEN 

(COURTYARD OUTLINE SHOWN BY RED DOTTED LINE)      
DISPLAY AREA SHOWN IN RED

P
age 23






Proposed Alcohol  
Display/Serving Area 
*Two Display Shelves 
Width 100cm 
Height 100cm 
(TOTAL 1m2)/1.3% of total 
area 

Customer Serving/Till 
Area

IONA CRAFT STUDIO - OUTDOOR AREA, INTERIOR AND 
DISPLAY AREA 

Outdoor Space 
Total Area 33m2

P
age 24



  ITEM 5(b) 

 

Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

8th September 2022 

APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A PROVISIONAL PREMISES 

LICENCE 

 
NAME OF PREMISES: Islay Rum Distillery, Old Lemonade Factory, Port Ellen, Isle of Islay, PA42 7BZ 

APPLICANT:    Islay Spirits (No.2) Limited, Vintage House, 21 Park Road, Milngavie, G62 6PJ 

AGENT:    TLT Solicitors, 140 West George Street, Glasgow, G2 2HG 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: 

Distillery, store house and dispatch point. 

 LICENSED HOURS APPLIED FOR 

 ON SALES OFF SALES 

Monday N/A 10.00 to 22.00 

Tuesday N/A 10.00 to 22.00 

Wednesday N/A                     10.00 to 22.00 

Thursday N/A                      10.00 to 22.00 

Friday N/A                      10.00 to 22.00 

Saturday N/A   10.00 to 22.00 

Sunday N/A   10.00 to 22.00 

 
ACTIVITIES:- Club or other group meetings and recorded music. 
 
SEASONAL VARIATION:-  No seasonal variation. 
 
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PERSONS CONDITIONS:- N/A 
 
CAPACITY OF PREMISES:-  0 (no alcohol on public display). 
 

Page 25 Agenda Item 5b



  ITEM 5(b) 

 

LSO COMMENTS:   The premises is a new distillery comprising the distillery, a storehouse and 

despatch point. 

Operating plan 

Q1. Off-sales only. 

Q2. N/A. 

Q3, Off-sales hours 1000 to 2200 daily. 

Q4. N/A 

Q5. Activities – Club and Other Group Meetings; Recorded Music.   

The premises operate as a distillery and storehouse. Ancillary trade meetings and 
presentations may occur within and outwith core hours and would consist of trade customers 
or groups only.  No public access to facility.  Recorded music/radio may be played for staff. 
Other general activities associated with the warehousing of alcohol will occur. 

Q5(f). Distillery and storage and dispatch point for online sales. 

Q6. N/A 

Q7. There is off-sales capacity figure as there is no alcohol display area. 
 

Layout Plan 

The layout plan meets the requirements of The Premises Licence (Scotland) Regulations 2007. 

Online Sales 

The LSO will liaise with the applicant regarding distance selling regulations.  

The LSO has no concerns with this application. 

EHO 

Aware of application. No comments received. 

 

POLICE COMMENTS:  No Police objections   
 
OBJECTIONS/REPRESENTATIONS:   None 

POINTS FOR CONSIDERATION:- 

 

 

Page 26



©

13791

5504

39
16

13
62
9

14
38

2000

4327

64
10

5490

P
age 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE  

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
DRAWN BY 

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
CHECKED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
APPROVED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
AMENDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
SIG

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
B

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
C

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
H

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
CLIENT: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
PHASE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
TITLE: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
ONLINE SALES PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
DRAWING NUMBER: 

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
1:40@A1

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
SHEET 1 OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
COPYRIGHT  © 2022 ALLEN ASSOCIATES (HPE) LTD.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.  2022 ALLEN ASSOCIATES (HPE) LTD.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 2022 ALLEN ASSOCIATES (HPE) LTD.  ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
NOTES: 1. ACTIVITIES WILL OCCUR IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROVED OPERATING PLAN. ACTIVITIES WILL OCCUR IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROVED OPERATING PLAN. 

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
HIGH ROAD RUM COMPANY LTD

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
ISLAY DISTILLERY

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
AA/19/68

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
08.07.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
GN

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
MTS

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
AT

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
AS BUILT

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
-2D1

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
-

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
2,000 LITRE  MAKE UP TANK (2,750 kg)

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
2,000 LITRE  RUM STILL (2,500 kg)

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
MOLASSES IBC (1,500 kg)

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
PREPARATION &  DRY GOODS

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
STEAM GENERATOR & ANCILLARIES (1,000 kg)

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
AIR COMPRESSOR (200 kg)

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
CHILLER (2000 kg)

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
2,000 LITRE FERMENTERS

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
RUM IBC (1,100 kg)

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
SAFE AND RECEIVERS (1,500 kg)

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
200 LITRE  RETORT (500 kg)

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
200 LITRE  RETORT (500 kg)

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
CONDENSER (500 kg)

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
EFFLUENT IBC (1,100 kg)

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
WATER SUPPLY

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
WEIR

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
SCALE 1:1500@A1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  ITEM 6(a)        

 

          Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

8th September 2022 

VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

 

NAME OF PREMISES: 108 George Street, Oban, PA34 5NT 

APPLICANT: Rutland Capital Investments Ltd., 55 Northumberland Street, Edinburgh, EH3 

6JQ 

AGENT: N/A 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: 

The premises are situated on the ground floor of a tenement building in an area of commercial 

property. 

The premises will be a dedicated off-sales specialising in the sales of fine wines, whiskies, liqueurs, 

spirits, sparkling wines, non/low alcoholic beverages and other hot and cold beverages, 

Sample tastings will be available along with sales of ancillary items and merchandise and online 

sales. 

 EXISTING CORE HOURS PROPOSED CORE HOURS 

 ON SALES OFF SALES ON SALES OFF SALES 

Monday N/A 10.00 to 20.30 11.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Tuesday N/A 10.00 to 20.30 11.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Wednesday N/A 10.00 to 20.30 11.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Thursday N/A 10.00 to 20.30 11.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Friday N/A 10.00 to 20.30 11.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Saturday N/A 10.00 to 20.30 11.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Sunday N/A 10.00 to 20.30 11.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

 

DETAILS OF VARIATIONS SOUGHT:- 

The licence holder wishes to vary the licence as follows:- 

Page 29 Agenda Item 6a



  ITEM 6(a)        

 

 

1)  To add on-sales hours. 

2)  To amend off-sales hours. 

3)  To add private tastings of alcohol with food as an activity on the licence.  

4)  To add Children and Young Persons conditions. 

5)   To amend capacity to add on-sales figure. 

 

CURRENT ACTIVITIES: No activities are currently listed on the licence 

 

PROPOSED CHILDREN & YOUNG PERSON CONDITIONS:- 

TERMS - Children and young persons will be allowed access while accompanied by a person aged 18 

years or over who is visiting the shop. Children and young persons will not be allowed access to 

tasting events on the premises. 

AGES - Children (Birth to 15 years) Young Persons (16 & 17 years)  

TIMES – 10.00 to 22.00 

PARTS – All public parts of the premises 

 

CURRENT CAPACITY: 44.2 square metres 

PROPOSED CAPACITY: (To add on sales) 18 persons 

 

LSO:  The premises is situated on the ground floor of a tenement building in an area of commercial 

property and is a dedicated off-sales specialising in the sales of fine wines, whiskies, liqueurs, spirits, 

sparkling wines, non/low alcoholic beverages and other hot and cold beverages, Sample tastings will 

be available along with sales of ancillary items and merchandise and online sales.  

Details of Variation 

Update operating plan – 

Q1. Add on-sales. 

Q2. Add on-sales hours 10:00am to 10.00pm, Monday to Sunday. 

Q3. Amend off-sales hours from 10.00am to 8.30pm Monday to Sunday to 10.00am to 10.00pm, 

Monday to Sunday. 

Q5(f). Add he following statement in relation to on-sales – 

“Regular private tastings of alcohol with food.  The frequency will be request led and will be year round. The events will 

always be pre-organized, pre-booked and prepaid ahead of the dates. The shop will remain closed during these tastings and 

the number of people will be capped at 16 customers.” 

Q6. Add children and young person access terms, with the following statement – 

Terms 

Page 30



  ITEM 6(a)        

 

Children and young persons will be allowed access while accompanied by a person aged 18 years or over who is visiting the 

shop.  Children and young persons will not be allowed access to tasting events on the premise s. 

Ages 

Children [birth to 15 years] 

Young persons [16 & 17 years] 

Times 

1000 to 1700 

Parts 

All public parts of the premises 

Q7.  To amend the capacity figure to include on-sales capacity of 18 persons. 

Change of Name 

Change the name of the premises from 108 George Street to “The Wee Wine Shop.” 

The LSO has no concerns with this application. 

EHO 

Aware of application. No comments received. 

 

POLICE COMMENTS:  No Police objections. 
 

  OBJECTIONS/REPRESENTATIONS:  None 

  POINTS FOR CONSIDERATION: 

(1)The addition of on-sales hours 11a.m. to 10p.m. Monday to Sunday 

(2)Extend the terminal hour for off-sales from 8.30p.m. to 10p.m. 

(3)The addition of private tastings of alcohol with food as an activity 

(4)The addition of terms and conditions for children and young persons with a terminal hour of 5p.m. 

(5)The addition of an on-sales capacity figure of 18 persons 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



  ITEM 6(b)        

 

          Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

8th September 2022 

VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

 

NAME OF PREMISES: Slanj, Station Road, Tarbet, G83 7DA 

APPLICANT: Torrance Developments Ltd., 60 Cambuslang Road, Rutherglen, G73 1BQ 

AGENT: N/A 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: 

The premises are a two storey former church in a predominantly residential rural village.  

 

 EXISTING CORE HOURS PROPOSED CORE HOURS 

 ON SALES OFF SALES ON SALES OFF SALES 

Monday 11.00 to 24.00 11.00 to 22.00 11.00 to 24.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Tuesday 11.00 to 24.00 11.00 to 22.00 11.00 to 24.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Wednesday 11.00 to 24.00 11.00 to 22.00 11.00 to 24.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Thursday 11.00 to 24.00 11.00 to 22.00 11.00 to 24.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Friday 11.00 to 01.00 11.00 to 22.00 11.00 to 01.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Saturday 11.00 to 01.00 11.00 to 22.00 11.00 to 01.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Sunday 11.00 to 24.00 11.00 to 22.00 11.00 to 24.00 10.00 to 22.00 

 

DETAILS OF VARIATIONS SOUGHT:- 

The licence holder wishes to vary the licence as follows:- 

 

1)    To amend the off sales start time from 11am to 10am. 

2)    To amend the wording at Question 5(f). 

3)  To amend the layout plan to show addition of an adjacent adapted container to form a 

standalone grocery shop with off-sales facility. 

 

Page 33 Agenda Item 6b



  ITEM 6(b)        

 

CURRENT WORDING AT QUESTION 5(F) OTHER ACTIVITIES:-  

Takeaways and delivery of alcohol together with food to customers.  

 

PROPOSED WORDING AT QUESTION 5(F) OTHER ACTIVITIES:- 

Takeaways and delivery of alcohol together with food to customers.  

 

Addition of an adjacent standalone grocery shop with off-sales facility, as per updated layout plan. 

Shop will open 7am till 10pm daily and serve alcohol from 10am till 10pm. 

 

LSO:  The Slanj is a well-established restaurant in the area of Tarbet/Arrochar. 

This is an application to add a grocery shop, with off sales, within the premises grounds. The shop 

which consists of a converted container has been in operation for the past year, utilising occasional 

licences whilst awaiting planning permission for a more permanent solution. Planning permi ssion 

has now been granted, hence the application for the variation. 

Operating Plan 

Question 3 Core off Sales times 

Current; 11:00 till 22:00 seven days 

Proposed; 10:00 till 22:00 seven days (In line with national restrictions)  

Question 5(f) any other activities. 

Current; Delivery of alcohol together with food to customers. 

Proposed; Delivery of alcohol together with food to customers. 

Addition of an adjacent standalone grocery shop with off sales facility, as per updated layout plan. 

Shop will open 7am till 10pm daily and serve alcohol from 10am till 10pm 

Layout Plan 

A new Layout Plan showing the location of the grocery shop within the restaurant grounds has been 

submitted. 

EHO 

Is aware and has no issues. 

 

POLICE COMMENTS:  No Police objections. 

 
OBJECTIONS/REPRESENTATIONS:  NONE 

Page 34



  ITEM 6(b)        

 

 

 POINTS FOR CONSIDERATION: 

(1)Building Standards have advised that there is an outstanding building warrant enforcement notice 

in respect of the portacabin/container being used as retail premises. It has been agreed with the 

applicant that this application will be continued to the November Board meeting to enable the issues 

to be resolved. 

 

 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



  ITEM 6(c) 

 

Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

8th September 2022 

VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

 
NAME OF PREMISES: Stratheck Caravan Holiday Park, Loch Eck, Dunoon, PA23 8SG 

APPLICANT:  Cove Communities Venture 2 Argyle OpCo Limited, Drimsynie Estate Office, 

Lochgoilhead, PA24 8AD 

AGENT:    Poppleston Allan, 37 Stoney Street, The Lace Market, Nottingham, NG1 1LS  

 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: 

The park is a traditional holiday caravan park located within rural surroundings on the banks of the 

River Echaig close to Loch Eck within Argyll Forest Park. It extends to 27.58 acres licensed at present 

for 150 pitches. The public/lounge bar is a detached log cabin and internally provides an open-plan 

public lounge/bar with toilet and support accommodation. 

 EXISTING LICENSED HOURS 

 ON SALES OFF SALES 

Monday 11.00 to 23.00                     N/A 

Tuesday 11.00 to 23.00                     N/A 

Wednesday 11.00 to 23.00                      N/A 

Thursday 11.00 to 23.00                      N/A 

Friday 11.00 to 23.00                      N/A 

Saturday 11.00 to 23.00                      N/A 

Sunday 12.00 to 23.00                      N/A 

 
 

DETAILS OF VARIATIONS SOUGHT:- 

The licence holders wish to vary the licence as follows:- 

 

1)  To amend the seasonal variation. 

Page 39 Agenda Item 6c



  ITEM 6(c) 

 

 
2)  To add accommodation as an activity on the licence 
 

CURRENT ACTIVITIES: Recorded music; Live music; Dance facilities; Films; Indoor/Outdoor sports; 

Televised sport and outdoor drinking. 

 

CURRENT SEASONAL VARIATION:  The premises will be closed from the end of October unti l Easter 

with the exception of up to 5 days at New Year. On New Years Eve we will stay open until 1.00am.  

Hours to vary depending on demand. Opening hours displayed with "We reserve the right to close 

early if quiet". 

 

PROPOSED SEASONAL VARIATION: The premises will be open from 1st January to 31st December 

each year. On New Years Eve the premises will be open until 1.00am the following morning.  

Hours to vary depending on demand. Opening hours displayed with "We reserve the right to close 

early if quiet". 

 

LSO COMMENTS:  The caravan park is under new ownership. The current Operating Plan has been 

reviewed and a variation to make changes to suit the business model going forward has been 

submitted for consideration. 

Operating Plan 

Question 4 Seasonal Variation 

Current;  The premises will  be closed from the end of October until  Easter with the exception of up to 5 days 

at new year. On New Year’s Eve we will  stay open until  1.00am. 

Hours to vary depending on demand. Opening hours displayed with "we reserve the ri ght to close early if 

quiet". 

Proposed; the premises will be open from 1st January to 31st December each year. On New Year’s 

Eve the premises will be open until 0100 the following morning.  

Hours to vary depending on demand. Opening hours displayed with “We reserve the right to close 

early if quiet” 

Question 5; add accommodation (caravans/lodges) 

No other changes requested. 

EHO 

Is aware and comments that the current caravan licence permits them to be open weekends only, 

during the months of February and November. I have emailed the applicants agent who intimates 

she will make enquiries on that aspect with the client.  

 

Page 40



  ITEM 6(c) 

 

POLICE COMMENTS:  No Police objections   

OBJECTIONS/REPRESENTATIONS:   None 

POINTS FOR CONSIDERATION:- 

(1)The amendment of the seasonal variation to allow all year round opening 

(2)The addition of accommodation as an activity 

  

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



  ITEM 6(d) 

 

Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

8th September 2022 

VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

 
NAME OF PREMISES: Anchor Tavern, Marine Road, Port Bannatyne, Isle of Bute, PA20 0LL 

APPLICANT:  Port Bannatyne Development Trust Ltd., Inverbroom, 40 High Road, Port Bannatyne, 

PA20 0LL 

AGENT:    N/A 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: 

The premises are located on the ground floor of a two storey stone building with residential flats 

above. The premises consist of a public bar and lounge area. 

 EXISTING LICENSED HOURS 

 ON SALES OFF SALES 

Monday 11.00 to 01.00                     11.00 to 22.00 

Tuesday 11.00 to 01.00                     11.00 to 22.00 

Wednesday 11.00 to 01.00                      11.00 to 22.00 

Thursday 11.00 to 01.00                      11.00 to 22.00 

Friday 11.00 to 01.00                      11.00 to 22.00 

Saturday 11.00 to 01.00                      11.00 to 22.00 

Sunday 12.30 to 01.00                      12.30 to 22.00 

 
 

DETAILS OF VARIATIONS SOUGHT:- 

The licence holders wish to vary the licence as follows:- 

 

1)  To add bar meals, food to be delivered and takeaways as activities on the licence.  

2)  To add Children and Young Person conditions. Currently they are not permitted on the premises.  

 

Page 43 Agenda Item 6d



  ITEM 6(d) 

 

CURRENT ACTIVITIES: Celebrations; Funerals; Club or other group meetings; Recorded music; 

Indoor/Outdoor sports and televised sport. 

 

PROPOSED CHILDREN & YOUNG PERSONS CONDITIONS:   

TERMS - Children and young persons are permitted access when accompanied by an adult aged 18 

years or over. 

AGES - Children 0-15 years Young persons 16 & 17 years 

TIMES - Until 8pm and may remain for the duration of any pre-booked event or function. 

PARTS - All public areas with the exception of the immediate vicinity of the bar counter.  

 

LSO COMMENTS:  The Anchor Tavern has recently been purchased and refurbished by the Port 

Bannatyne Community Trust and is being developed towards a more family friendly, community 

based service. 

The applicants wish to add food to their services and to permit Children and Young Persons onto the 

premises. 

Operating Plan 

To Add to question 5; bar meals, (outside caterer, food to be delivered and takeaways, served on 

the premises. Kitchen to follow) 

To add to question 6; terms, times, ages, and parts, for children and young person’s access 

Terms; 

Children and Young Persons are permitted access when accompanied by an adult aged 18 years or 

over. 

 Ages; 

Children 0-15 

Young Persons 16 & 17 

Times;  

Until 8pm and may remain for the duration of any pre-booked event or function 

Parts; 

All public areas with the exception of the immediate vicinity of the bar counter. 

EHO 

Is aware and will be assisting/advising with food safety aspects.   

 

POLICE COMMENTS:  No Police objections   

Page 44



  ITEM 6(d) 

 

OBJECTIONS/REPRESENTATIONS:  A letter of representation dated 23rd August,2022 has been 

received (by email) from:- 

Ian McKillop, 44 Ardbeg Road, Rothesay, Isle of Bute. A copy of this is attached.  

POINTS FOR CONSIDERATION:- 

(1) To add bar meals, food to be delivered and takeaways as activities. The food will be provided by 

an outside caterer meantime pending the installation of a kitchen. 

(2) The addition of terms and conditions for children and young persons. There are currently no baby 

changing facilities so children under the age of 5 cannot be on the premises until these are installed.   

(3) Consider the letter of representation from Ian McKillop 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Ian McKillop 

44 Ardbeg Road 

Rothesay 

Isle of Bute 

Phone: 07421352496 

E mail ianbmckillop@hotmail.com 

 Argyll and Bute Licensing Board  

 
Kilmory, Lochgilphead, Argyll and Bute 

 
 

Dear Sir/MadamPort Bannatyne. 

 

Application to vary license Anchor Tavern, Port Bannatyne, Isle of Bute   

 

Although not a resident of Port Bannatyne I am a full time resident of the Isle of Bute and have been a regular at 

the Anchor Tavern ,Port Bannatyne for the past 6 years. I am not a shareholder of the Port Bannatyne 

Development Trust . 

The Anchor Tavern has been a wet trade pub/bar consisting of a Public House and a separate Off Sales. When Mr 

Bell took over he changed the off licence into a pool room for those regulars who wished to play pool. There was 

also a darts board in the public bar area and during the winter months regular Pool and Darts competitions were 

held among the clients of licensed premised on the Island. 

Mr Bell closed the pub due to a variety  of reasons including Covid restrictions and it was put up for sale.  

 

The Port Bannatyne Development Trust was formed with the aim of  purchasing one of the closed down licenced 

premises to be a community pub. Eventually they were able to secure funds/grants and purchased the Anchor 

Tavern. They conducted a survey and some 262 were completed.Some 35% of these were completed by residents 

of Port Bannatyne which amounted to 17% of the residents of Port Bannatyne.  

Of the 262 who completed the survey some 82% wanted a community pub while 80% wanted a community café . 

The questions posed were not an either or, one could express a preference for both.   

 

 

Page 47



 [Type the sender company name] 

 

 Page 2 

 

In their business plan the PBDT stated that they wanted to establish a community owned Pub however it appears 

they now wish the whole premises including the pub and the café to be a community hub for all the community. 

Since PBDT bought the premises the pool room ,which has a separate entrance from the pub has been developed 

into a community hub/café with seating for 12 persons. However th is hub is still part of the licensed premises and 

at the moment no one under 18 yrs of age is allowed entry into either the pub or the community hub/café There 

is no longer a darts board so 2 of the “community facilities” are no longer available. It appears from PBDP web site 

that the trust were unaware of this fact as they state on their website http://www.pbdt.org/ that“The community 

hub next door can be rented for meetings for free (£30 deposit required) for a maximum of 12 people. All ages 

are welcome in this area.”, They appear to have recently discovered their error and hence the application before 

you. 

 

I am now aware that they have applied for a variation to the licence to allow Bar meals /take away or delivery .  I 

assume that this means ordering and eating a take away from another establishment on Bute as there are no 

facilities withing the Anchor Tavern to prepare/cook any sort of meal. I assume they will provide cutlery and plates 

however the tables are not ideal for eating meals from, they are too low, being normal bar tables ,the height of a 

coffee table. .  

They have also applied to allow children and young people into the entire public house premises including, I am led 

to believe infants under the age of 5yrs with a specification that children/young persons  are not allowed on the 

designated area around the bar in the public bar area. I am unsure whether the application is purely with the 

proviso that they are coming in with an adult for a meal. If so problems could arise if the take away/delivery was 

not delivered prior to 8pm cut off or that indeed there is  a cut off time ie such as 8pm after which they are not 

allowed.  

I do not feel that the public bar area is suitable for children and young persons, the premises are small with a 

capacity of around 40 to 50 people, the clientele are ,in the main, a mixture of locals ,holiday home owners and 

visiting crew from the marina.This is further reduced on the “music nights” as around 10 musicians turn up and 

occupy a full section of the pub.  

The clientele age group are in general over 40yrs ,and they come into the Anchor Tavern for a drink and a 

chat/discussion.  

The middle aged elderly locals, in particular the males , have always used the pub as a meeting place to meet 

friends, for a drink.  

Due to the size and layout it can become very crowded with people sitting/standing in close proximity to each 

other and, as in any other wet led pub discussions can become heated ,particularly amongst the regulars, strong 

language is sometimes heard ,just from force of habit. On a few occasions some people have been barred due to 

their behaviour. Children/young persons should not be subjected to this, it is too late after the event.  

In relation to children under 5 there are no suitable areas for changing facilities, both the ladies and gents are tin y 

and only one person at a time in the ladies with a urinal and one toilet in the gents. Nor is there any other space in 

Page 48

http://www.pbdt.org/


 [Type the sender company name] 

 

 Page 3 

 

the public bar area which would not be in full view of the public. The wash hand basins in both the ladies and gents 

have no area around them to allow baby changing facilities.  

The area defined where children/young persons would not be allowed, ie around the bar area would further 

restrict the capacity of the premises and children would have to encroach on the bar area to gain access to the 

gents toilet. 

If darts were to be reintroduced the only place for the darts board would be where it was originally ,on the wall to 

the left (as looking at it) of the door to the ladies toilet. This reduces the capacity of the seating by some 10 people 

and it could present a danger to anyone but in particular children if they were not conscious/aware of darts being 

thrown while they were trying to enter/leave the ladies.  

A compromise , although not ideal ,would be to allow children/young persons over the age of 5yrs into what was 

the off sales, latterly the pool room and now a community café. This is entirely separate from the Public Bar with 

an entrance from the street. If parents wanted to bring children then this area, which seats about 12 people, would 

be ideal, alcoholic drinks would be served via a hatch already in place and children could be allowed to enter the 

pub to use the ladies/gents under supervision from a parent. Meals could also be delivered into this area if 

required. It would not impinge on enjoyment of the drinkers in the public bar without having to be aware of the 

presence of younger persons possibly running about and misbehaving,  The only drawback is that there are no 

toilet facilities in the café area and at the moment it would entail leaving the café via the entrance and entering the 

pub via the pub door  to use the toilet , perhaps the elected committee could develop a plan to allow access to the 

toilets without entering the bar.  

 There is one last point, the first AGM is being held on the 3 rd September when a committee will be elected to run 

the pub. At the moment the pub is being run by an unelected steering committee , surely the elected committee 

should be making the decision whether to apply for a variation to the licence re children/young persons being 

allowed. 

 I have also noted that the current license holder will not be on the committee as she is not standing for election.  

Yours faithfully  

 

Ian McKillop 

 

23/08/2022 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



  ITEM 6(e) 

 

Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

8th September 2022 

VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

 
NAME OF PREMISES: The Glen Bar & Restaurant, Carradale, Campbeltown, PA28 6QG 

APPLICANT:  May Elizabeth Currie, The Glen Bar & Restaurant, As above. 

AGENT:    N/A 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: 

Lounge bar, with restaurant/function area, and including terrace and beer garden, with kitchen and 

associated storage and toilet accommodation. 

 EXISTING LICENSED HOURS 

 ON SALES OFF SALES 

Monday 11.00 to 23.00 11.00 to 22.00 

Tuesday 11.00 to 23.00                     11.00 to 22.00 

Wednesday 11.00 to 23.00                      11.00 to 22.00 

Thursday 11.00 to 23.00                      11.00 to 22.00 

Friday 11.00 to 24.00                      11.00 to 22.00 

Saturday 11.00 to 24.00                      11.00 to 22.00 

Sunday 12.00 to 23.00                      12.00 to 22.00 

 
 

DETAILS OF VARIATIONS SOUGHT:- 

The licence holder wishes to vary the licence as follows:- 

 

1) To add a seasonal variation to allow the premises to close annually from 7th January to 24th 

February. 

 

 

Page 51 Agenda Item 6e



  ITEM 6(e) 

 

PROPOSED SEASONAL VARIATION:  The premises will be closed annually from 7th January until 24th 

February. 

 

LSO COMMENTS:  The premises is a lounge bar, with restaurant/function area, and including terrace 
and beer garden, with kitchen and associated storage and toilet accommodation. 
 
Details of Variation 
Update the operating plan as follows – 
 
Q4. Add Seasonal Variation.  To close the premises between 7th January and 24th February each year. 
 
Board policy on seasonal variations states; 
 
‘The Management reserve the right to open the business one hour later than the commencement of licensed core hours or 
close one hour earlier than termination of core hours on any day of the week during winter months i.e. 1st October to 31st 

March.’ 

 
EHO 
Aware of application. No comments received. 

 

POLICE COMMENTS:  No Police objections   

OBJECTIONS/REPRESENTATIONS:   None 

POINTS FOR CONSIDERATION:- 

(1)The addition of a seasonal variation- premises to be closed from 7th January to 24th February each 

year. 

  

 

Page 52



  ITEM 6(g)        

 

          Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

8th September 2022 

VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

 

NAME OF PREMISES: Luss Village Shop, Broomfield, Luss, G83 8PA 

APPLICANT: Luss Village Shop Ltd., 145 Milngavie Road, Bearsden, G61 3DY 

AGENT: N/A 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: 

Shop premises situated in the main car park of Luss Village constituting a solely occupied detached 

building.  The premises sell takeaway food and groceries, alcohol, tobacco, newspapers and 

magazines, tourist gifts, hardware, ice cream and soft drinks.  The premises contain a sub-post office 

and provide an automated teller machine and a mobile telephone top up facility.  

 

 EXISTING CORE HOURS PROPOSED CORE HOURS 

 ON SALES OFF SALES ON SALES OFF SALES 

Monday N/A 10.00 to 18.00 N/A 10.00 to 19.00 

Tuesday N/A 10.00 to 18.00 N/A 10.00 to 19.00 

Wednesday N/A 10.00 to 18.00 N/A 10.00 to 19.00 

Thursday N/A 10.00 to 18.00 N/A 10.00 to 19.00 

Friday N/A 10.00 to 18.00 N/A 10.00 to 19.00 

Saturday N/A 10.00 to 18.00 N/A 10.00 to 19.00 

Sunday N/A 12.30 to 18.00 N/A 10.00 to 19.00 

 

DETAILS OF VARIATIONS SOUGHT:- 

The applicant wishes to vary the licence as follows:- 

1) To vary the opening time on a Sunday from 12.30pm to 10.00am in line with the other days 

of the week. 

2) To extend the terminal hour to 7.00pm for all days of the week. 

Page 53 Agenda Item 6f



  ITEM 6(g)        

 

 

LSO:  Luss Village Shop is a general grocers with off sales facility. The Premises Licence holder has 

reviewed her core hours for the sale of alcohol and in line with demand wishes to change as outlined 

below. 

Operating Plan 

Question 3; core times when alcohol will be sold for consumption off premises 

Current; Monday to Saturday 10:00 till 18:00 Sunday 12:30 till 18:00 

Proposed; seven days; 10:00 till 19:00. 

EHO 

Is aware and has no issues. 

 

 

POLICE COMMENTS:  No Police objections. 
 

  OBJECTIONS/REPRESENTATIONS:  None 

  POINTS FOR CONSIDERATION: 

(1)To bring forward the commencement hour for off-sales on a Sunday from 12.30p.m. to 10a.m. 

(2)To extend the terminal hour for off-sales from 6p.m. to 7p.m. Monday to Sunday 

 

 

 

Page 54



  ITEM 6(f)        

 

          Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

8th September 2022 

VARIATION OF A PREMISES LICENCE 

 

NAME OF PREMISES: Laphroaig Distillery Visitor Centre & Shop, Port Ellen, Isle of Islay, PA42 7DU 

APPLICANT: Beam Suntory, Springburn Bond, Carlisle Street, Glasgow, G21 1EQ 

AGENT: N/A 

 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES: 

Visitor centre shop in the visitor centre at Laphroaig Distillery 

 

 EXISTING CORE HOURS PROPOSED CORE HOURS 

 ON SALES OFF SALES ON SALES OFF SALES 

Monday 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Tuesday 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Wednesday 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Thursday 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Friday 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Saturday 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

Sunday 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 18.00 10.00 to 22.00 10.00 to 22.00 

 

DETAILS OF VARIATIONS SOUGHT:- 

The licence holder wishes to vary the licence as follows:- 

1)  To amend the terminal hour for on-sales and off-sales to 22.00. 

2)  To change the premises manager to William Sinclair. 

3)  To add receptions, club or other group meetings and live performances as activities.  

4)  To amend the Children and Young Persons conditions. 

 

CURRENT ACTIVITIES: Outdoor drinking. 

Page 55 Agenda Item 6g



  ITEM 6(f)        

 

CURRENT CHILDREN & YOUNG PERSON CONDITIONS:- 

TERMS - Children are permitted within the visitor centre, in the company of an adult over the age of 

18 years. Young persons are permitted within the visi tor centre.  

AGES - Children of all ages are permitted entry within the visitor centre as long as they are 

accompanied with a responsible adult at all times.  

TIMES – Children are permitted to enter the visitor centre during normal opening hours.  

PARTS – All public areas with the exception of the educational tastings area. 

 

PROPOSED CHILDREN & YOUNG PERSON CONDITIONS:- 

TERMS – Children are only allowed entry when accompanied by a responsible adult. Children are 

permitted on tours. 

Children are not permitted on educational tasting activities. 

AGES – Children of all ages are permitted entry within the visitor centre as long as they are 

accompanied by a responsible adult. 

TIMES –During normal opening hours 10.00am to 10.00pm 

PARTS - Children and young persons are allowed entry to all areas within the visitor centre and on 

tours around the distillery, as long as they are accompanied by a responsible adult at all times.  

Children and young persons are not permitted to be present during educational tastings.  

 

LSO:   
 
Operating Plan 
Q5. Activities – add Receptions; Club and other group meetings, and Live Performance, all within 
core licensing hours. 
 
Q6. Children and Young Person access – 
 
Current Proposed 
Terms 

Children only allowed entry when accompanied with a 
responsible adult. Children permitted to tour the distillery, 
but not permitted to be present during educational tasting 

activities. 
 
Ages 

Children of all ages are permitted within the museum, shop 
and lounge area of the visitor centre as long as they are 
accompanied with a responsible adult at all times. Children 
are permitted to tour the distillery with responsible adult 
but are not permitted to be present during the educational 
tasting of whisky.  
 

Times 
Children are permitted to enter the visitor centre during 
normal opening hours.  
 

Parts 

Children of all ages are permitted within the museum, shop 
and lounge area of the visitor centre as long as they are 
accompanied with a responsible adult at all times. Children 

are permitted to tour the distillery with responsible adult 

Terms 

Children are only allowed access when accompanied by a 
responsible adult.  Children are permitted on tours.  Children 
are not permitted on educational tasting activities. 

 
Ages 
Children of all ages are permitted entry within the Visitor 

Centre, as long as they are accompanied by a responsible 
adult. 
 
Times 
During normal opening hours – 1000 to 2200 
 
Parts 

Children and young persons allowed to all areas within the 
Visitor Centre and on tours around the Distillery, as long as 
they are accompanied by a responsible adult at all times.  
Children and young persons are not permitted to be present 

during educational tastings. 

 

Page 56



  ITEM 6(f)        

 

but are not permitted to be present during the educational 
tasting of whisky.  
 

 
 

 
EHO 

Aware of application. No comments received. 

 

POLICE COMMENTS:  No Police objections. 
 

  OBJECTIONS/REPRESENTATIONS:  None 

  POINTS FOR CONSIDERATION: 

(1)To extend the terminal hour for both on-sales and off-sales from 6p.m. to 10p.m. Monday to 

Sunday 

(2)To add receptions, club or other group meetings and live performances as activities. Clarification of 

the nature of live performances. 

(3)Change of premises manager 

(4)To amend the terms and conditions for children and young persons 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 59 Agenda Item 7a



This page is intentionally left blank



 

ARGYLL AND BUTE LICENSING BOARD – 8 SEPTEMBER 2022 

REPORT BY CLERK TO THE BOARD 

 

STATEMENT OF GAMBLING POLICY 2022-2025 

 

1.  BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 provides that a licensing authority 

shall, before each successive three year period, prepare a statement of the 

principles they propose to apply with respect to the exercise of their functions 

under the Act during that period and publish a statement.  The Licensing 

Authority may, during a three year period, review and revise the statement of 

their policy with respect to the exercise of their functions during the 

remainder of that period. 

 

1.2 In preparing a statement the Licensing Authority requires to consult with:- 

•  The Chief Constable 

 •  One or more persons who appear to represent the interests of people 

    carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area, and 

 •  One or more persons who appear to represent the interests of persons     

    likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions under this  

    Act  

The parties who will be consulted by either email or letter are set out in 

Appendix 1 of the Gambling Policy Statement 

 

1.3 The draft policy will also be available on the Council’s website. 

 

1.4 The present policy was published in December 2019 and is due to expire in 

December 2022.  Accordingly a review of the Policy Statement is required. 

 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

2.1  That the Board agree that the exercise of certain functions in respect of some 

matters under the 2005 Act be delegated to the Clerk/Depute Clerk   of the 

Licensing Board.as detailed in Appendix 3 of the Policy statement. 

 

2.2 That the Board agree to undertake a review of the Policy Statement. 

 

2.3 That the draft revised Statement of Gambling Policy attached as Appendix 1, 

be approved for consultation. It should be noted that text which it is proposed 

to remove is marked as crossed through. Additions to the text are marked in 

red.  The main changes are:- 

Page 61 Agenda Item 8



 to include the scheme of delegation in the policy as Appendix 3  

 to change the address for Police Scotland  

 Page 10 to insert definition of  gaming machines available for use in 

relation to licensed premises   

 Page 15 to update information in relation to planning and building 

standards to refer to most up to date guidance from Gambling 

Commission 

 Page 17 to highlight need to protect children, young persons and 

vulnerable people 

 Page 18 update to reflect Gambling Commission up to date guidance 

in relation to betting premises 

 Page 27 to update to reflect Gambling Commission up to date 

guidance in relation to Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre 

Gaming Machine Permits 

 Page 28/30 to update to reflect Gambling Commission up to date 

guidance in relation to Club Gaming Permits and Club Machine 

Permits 

 

2.4 As part of this review process, the Board agree to initiate a consultation 

exercise with a number of groups and organisations and that the deadline for 

consultation responses should be 17th October 2022. 

 

2.5 That the Clerk to the Board submit a report to the next meeting of the 

Licensing Board to be held on 8th November 2022 on the outcome of the 

consultation, together with a final version of the Statement of Gambling 

Policy for adoption. 

 

 

 

 

 

DAVID LOGAN 

Clerk to the Board 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

J\Litigation\Alison\Gambling Act 2005\Statement of  Gambling Policy  2022 

Page 62



 

 1 

ARGYLL & BUTE LICENSING BOARD POLICY STATEMENT 
Gambling Act 2005 

Published 2022 
 

Contents 
 

Item Page 
 
Part A 
 

 

Foreword 2 

1. The licensing objectives 3 

2. Introduction 3 
3. Declaration 4 

4. Responsible Authorities 4 

5. Interested parties 6 

6. Exchange of information 7 

7. Enforcement 7/8 

8. Licensing authority functions 9 
 
Part B - Premises licences 
 

 

1. General Principles 10 

2. Adult Gaming Centres 19 

3. (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres 19 
4. Casinos 20 

5. Bingo 20 

6. Betting premises 21 

7.Tracks  21 

8. Travelling fairs 23 

9. Provisional Statements 23 
10. Reviews 24/25 

 
Part C - Permits / Temporary and Occasional Use Notices 
 

 

1. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre gaming machine permits 26 

2. (Alcohol) Licensed premises gaming machine permits 27 
3. Prize Gaming Permits  28 

4. Club Gaming and Club Machines Permits 28 

5. Temporary Use Notices 29 

6. Occasional Use Notices 30 

7. Small Society Lotteries 30 
  

Appendix 1 – Schedule of Consultees  31 

Appendix 2 – Schedule Responsible Authorities & Map of ABC 32 & 33 

Appendix 3 – Argyll and Bute Licensing Board Scheme of Delegation 34-37 

 

Page 63



 

 2 

 
 
 

FOREWORD 
 
This Policy Statement is published by the Argyll and Bute Licensing Board as required in terms of the 
Gambling Act 2005.  
 
 
Consultation on the draft Policy Statement took place during the period from 8 September to 17 October 
2022. 
 
A report providing details of comments received from consultees was considered at the meeting of the Argyll 
and Bute Licensing Board which was held on 8th November 2022.  
 
 
The Policy Statement will be in force for a period of three years. It will be kept under review and revised if 
appropriate during the three year period. 

 

Page 64



 

 3 

PART A 
 
1.The Licensing Objectives 

 
In exercising most of their functions under the Gambling Act 2005 (“The Act”), licensing authorities must 
have regard to the Licensing Objectives as set out in Section 1 of the Act.  The Licensing Objectives are: 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or 
disorder or being used to support crime 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling 
 
It should be noted that the Gambling Commission has stated: “The requirement in relation to children is  
explicitly to protect them from being harmed or exploited by gambling.”   
 
This Licensing Authority is aware that, as per Section 153 of the Act, in making decisions about Premises 
Licences and Temporary Use Notices it should aim to permit the use of premises for gambling in so far as it 
thinks it: 

 in accordance with any relevant Code of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission 
 in accordance with any relevant Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission  

 reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives and 

 in accordance with the Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy 
 
 
2.  Introduction 
 
Argyll and Bute Licensing Board is the Licensing Authority for Argyll and Bute in terms of the Act.  The 
Board area covers the same territory as the Argyll and Bute Council area.  This area is shown in the map 
attached to this Policy in Appendix 2. 
 
The authority to exercise certain functions in respect of some matters under the 2005 Act has been 
delegated to the Clerk/Depute Clerk or the Chair/Vice-Chair of the Licensing Board. The Board’s Scheme of 
Delegation is attached at Appendix 3 and can also be accessed on Argyll and Bute Council’s website, 
accessible from the ‘Law and Licensing section’. 
 
Licensing Authorities are required by the Act to publish a Policy Statement setting out the principles which 
they propose to apply when exercising their functions.  This Statement must be published at least every 
three years.  The Statement may also be reviewed from “time to time” and amended parts re-consulted 
upon.   (N.B. if amendments are made, the whole Policy is not re-opened to consultation, only the 
amendments).  The Statement must be then re-published and re-advertised in the same way as new 
statement. 
 
The Argyll and Bute Licensing Board consulted a variety of persons upon this Statement before finalising 
and publishing.  A list of those persons consulted is provided in appendix 1.  A copy of the proposed 
amended policy was also available on the Council’s website.  It should be noted that where unsolicited 
comments were received from other persons we have not listed all of these. 
 
The Act requires that the following parties are consulted by Licensing Authorities: 

 The Chief Constable; 

 One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the interests of persons carrying on 
gambling businesses in the Authority’s area; 

Page 65



 

 4 

 One or more persons who appear to the Authority to represent the interests of persons who are likely to 
be affected by the exercise of the Authority’s functions under the Act. 

 
 
 
 
A list of persons this Authority consulted is shown on appendix 1 to this policy and they were consulted by 
either email or by letter: 
 
Should you have any comments as regards this Policy Statement please send them via e-mail or letter to 
the following contact: 
Name:  Clerk to the Licensing Board  
Address:  Argyll and Bute Licensing Board, Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT  
E-mail:  licensing@argyll-bute.gov.uk 
 
It should be noted that this Policy Statement will not override the right of any person to make an application, 
make representations about an application, or apply for a review of a licence, as each will be considered on 
its own merits and according to the statutory requirements of the Act.   
 
 
3. Declaration 
 
In producing the final Statement, this Licensing Authority declares that it has had regard to the Licensing 
Objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the guidance issued by the Gambling Commission, and any 
responses from those consulted on the Statement. 
 
 
4. Responsible Authorities 

 
The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply in exercising its powers 
under Section 157(h) of the Act to designate, in writing, a body which is competent to advise the Authority 
about the protection of children from harm.  The principles are: 

 the need for the body to be responsible for an area covering the whole of the Licensing Authority’s area; 
and 

 the need for the body to be answerable to democratically elected persons, rather than any particular 
vested interest group. 

 
In accordance with the suggestion in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for Local Authorities, this 
authority designates the Local Child Protection Committee for this purpose. 
 
The contact details of all the Responsible Authorities under the Act are as follows: 

 
 
 
The Gambling Commission:  
Victoria Square House 
Victoria Square 
Birmingham B2 4BP 
Tel: 0121 230 6666 
Fax: 0121 233 1096 

Page 66



 

 5 

info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
H M Revenue & Customs 
Excise Processing Teams 
BX9 1GL 
United Kingdom 
Tel: 0300 322 7072 Option 7. 
Email: NRUbetting&gaming@hmrc.gsi.gov.uk 
 
Police Scotland 
Chief Constable 
2 Clyde Gateway 
French Street 
Glasgow 
G40 4EH 
 
Fire and Rescue  
Scottish Fire and Rescue Service 
Bothwell Road 
Hamilton 
Lanarkshire 
ML3 0EA 
Tel: 01698 300999 
Fax: 01698 338444 
 
The Planning Authority 
Development & Economic Growth 
Department of Development and Infrastructure Services   
Argyll and Bute Council 
Kilmory 
Lochgilphead, PA31 
Phone: 01546 604172 
 
Building Standards Authority 
Planning & Regulatory Services 
Argyll and Bute Council 
Kilmory 
Lochgilphead, PA31 
Phone: 01436 658872 
 
Environment Authority (usually Environmental Health) 
Planning & Regulatory Services 
Environmental Health 
Argyll and Bute Council 

Page 67

mailto:info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk
mailto:NRUbetting&gaming@hmrc.gsi.gov.uk


 

 6 

Kilmory 
Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT  
Phone: 01546 604292 
 
 
 
 
 
An authority for the protection of children (usually Children’s Services)  
Community Services 
Head of Children & Families 
Argyll and Bute Council 
Kilmory 
Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT 
Phone.: 01546 604256 

 

5.  Interested parties 

 
Interested parties can make representations about licence applications, or apply for a review of an existing 
licence.  These parties are defined in the Act as follows: 
 “For the purposes of this Part a person is an interested party in relation to an application for or in respect of 
a premises licence if, in the opinion of the Licensing Authority which issues the licence or to which the 
application is made, the person- 
a) lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities, 
b) has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities, or 
c) represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b)” 
 
The Licensing Authority is required by regulations to state the principles it will apply in exercising its powers 
under the Gambling Act 2005 to determine whether a person is an interested party.  The principles are:   
 
Each case will be decided upon its merits.  This Authority will not apply a rigid rule to its decision making.  It 
will consider the examples of considerations provided in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for 
Licensing Authorities at 8.9 and 8.17  It will also consider the Gambling Commission's Guidance that "has 
business interests" should be given the widest possible interpretation and include partnerships, charities, 
faith groups and medical practices. 
 
The Gambling Commission has recommended that the Licensing Authority states that interested parties 
include trade associations and trade unions, and residents’ and tenants’ associations (Gambling 
Commission Guidance for Licensing Authorities 8.9-8.11.  This Authority will not however generally view 
these bodies as interested parties unless they have a member who can be classed as an interested person 
under the terms of the Gambling Act 2005 i.e. lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be 
affected by the activities being applied for. 
 
Interested parties can be persons who are democratically elected such as councillors and MP’s.  No specific 
evidence of being asked to represent an interested person will be required as long as the Councillor / MP 
represent the ward likely to be affected.  Other than these however, this Authority will generally require 
written evidence that a person/body (e.g. an advocate / relative) ‘represents’ someone who either lives 
sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the authorised activities and/or has business 
interests that might be affected by the authorised activities.  A letter from one of these persons, requesting 
the representation is sufficient. 
 

Page 68



 

 7 

If individuals wish to approach Councillors to ask them to represent their views then care should be taken 
that the Councillors are not part of the Licensing Board dealing with the licence application.  If there are any 
doubts then please contact the Licensing Department on 01546 604338. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.  Exchange of Information 
 
Licensing Authorities are required to include in their Statements the principles to be applied by the Authority 
in exercising the functions under sections 29 and 30 of the Act, with respect to the exchange of information 
between it and the Gambling Commission, and the functions under section 350 of the Act, with respect to 
the exchange of information between it and the other persons listed in Schedule 6 to the Act. 
 
The principle that this Licensing Authority applies is that it will act in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act in its exchange of information which includes the provision that the Data Protection Act 1998, will not be 
contravened.  The Licensing Authority will also have regard to any Guidance issued by the Gambling 
Commission to Licensing Authorities on this matter, as well as any relevant regulations issued by the 
Secretary of State and the Scottish Ministers under the powers provided in the Act.   
 
Should any protocols be established as regards information exchange with other bodies then they will be 
made available.   
 
7. Enforcement 
 
In general, the Gambling Commission will take the lead in the investigation and, where necessary, 
prosecution of illegal gambling. 
 
Licensing authorities are required by regulation under the Gambling Act 2005 to state the principles to be 
applied by the Authority in exercising the functions under Part 15 of the Act, with respect to the inspection of 
premises; and the powers under section 346 of the Act, to institute criminal proceedings in respect of the 
offences specified. 
 
This Licensing Authority’s principles are that: 
 
It will be guided by the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for Licensing Authorities and will endeavour to be: 
 
 Proportionate: regulators should only intervene when necessary:  remedies should be appropriate to 

the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised; 

 Accountable:  regulators must be able to justify decisions, and be subject to public scrutiny; 

 Consistent:  rules and standards must be joined up and implemented fairly; 

 Transparent:  regulators should be open, and keep regulations simple and user friendly;  and 

 Targeted:  regulation should be focused on the problem, and minimise side effects.  
 
As per the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for Local Authorities, this Licensing Authority will endeavour 
to avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes so far as possible.   
 
  This Licensing Authority will adopt and implement a risk-based inspection programme based on:-  
 

Page 69



 

 8 

 The Licensing Objectives  

 Relevant Codes of Practice  

 Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission, in particular at Part 36 
 The principles set out in this Statement of Licensing Policy 

 
 
 
This may include test purchasing activities to measure the compliance of licensed operators with aspects of 
the Gambling Act. When undertaking test purchasing activities, this Licensing Authority will undertake to 
liaise with the Gambling Commission and the operator to determine what other, if any, test purchasing 
schemes may already be in place. Irrespective of the actions of an operator on their overall  
estate, test purchasing may be deemed to be an appropriate course of action. 
 
The main enforcement and compliance role for this Licensing Authority in terms of the Gambling Act 2005 
will be to ensure compliance with the Premises Licences and other permissions which it authorises.  The 
Gambling Commission will be the enforcement body for the Operating and Personal Licences.  It is also 
worth noting that concerns about manufacture, supply or repair of gaming machines will not be dealt with by 
the Licensing Authority but will be notified to the Gambling Commission.   This Authority also understands 
that the Gambling Commission will be responsible for compliance as regards unlicensed premises. 
 
For the purposes of s.304 of the Act, the licensing board in its role as licensing authority has resolved to 
delegate the designation of local authority officers as authorised persons to the clerk to the licensing board, 
such local authority officers being designated as required. 
 
The Licensing Authority will continue to investigate complaints and conduct proactive enforcement activities 
to ensure that conditions attached to licences are complied with, and that unlicensed activity is dealt with as 
appropriate.  
 
The Licensing Authority will exercise its powers under the Act to instigate criminal proceedings where 
circumstances require.  
 
This Licensing Authority also keeps itself informed of developments as regards the work of the Better 
Regulation Executive in its consideration of the regulatory functions of local authorities. 
 
Bearing in mind the principle of transparency, this Licensing Authority’s enforcement/compliance 
protocols/written agreements will be available upon request to the Licensing Department, Kilmory, 
Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT  Requests may also be made via e-mail at licensing@argyll-bute.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 70



 

 9 

 
 
8. Licensing Authority functions 
Licensing Authorities are required under the Act to: 
 Be responsible for the licensing of premises where gambling activities are to take place by issuing 

Premises Licences  

 Issue Provisional Statements  

 Regulate members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes who wish to undertake certain gaming 
activities via issuing Club Gaming Permits and/or Club Machine Permits  

 Issue Club Machine Permits to Commercial Clubs  

 Grant permits for the use of certain lower stake gaming machines at unlicensed Family Entertainment 
Centres  

 Receive notifications from alcohol licensed premises (under the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005) for the 
use of two or fewer gaming machines  

 Grant Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits for premises licensed to sell/supply alcohol for 
consumption on the premises licensed, under the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005, where there are more 
than two machines  

 Register small society lotteries below prescribed thresholds  

 Issue Prize Gaming Permits  

 Receive and Endorse Temporary Use Notices  

 Receive Occasional Use Notices  

 Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of licences issued (see section 
above on information exchange) 

 Maintain registers of the permits and licences that are issued under these functions 
 
It should be noted that local Licensing Authorities will not be involved in licensing remote gambling at all.  
This will fall to the Gambling Commission via Operator Licences. 
 
The Gambling Commission can be contacted at:  
 
Gambling Commission  
Victoria Square House  
Victoria Square  
Birmingham  
B2 4BP 

Page 71



 

 10 

 
PART B 

PREMISES LICENCES 
 
1. General Principles  
 
Premises Licences will be subject to the requirements set out in the Gambling Act 2005 and Regulations, as 
well as specific mandatory and default conditions which are detailed in regulations issued by the Scottish 
Ministers.  In most cases licensing authorities are able to exclude default conditions and also attach others, 
where it is believed to be appropriate. 
 
(i) Decision-Making 
This Licensing Authority is aware that in making decisions about Premises Licences it should aim to permit 
the use of premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it: 

 in accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission; 

 in accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission ; 

 reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives; and 

 in accordance with the Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
It is appreciated that as per the Gambling Commission's Guidance for Licensing Authorities "moral 
objections to gambling are not a valid reason to reject applications for Premises Licences" (except as 
regards any 'no casino resolution' - see section on Casinos below) and also that in terms of Section 153(2) 
of the Act, in determining whether to grant a Premises Licence a Licensing Authority may not have regard to 
the expected demand for the facilities which it is proposed to provide. 
 
This Licensing Authority also notes Gambling Commission guidance on ensuring that betting is the primary 
activity of a licensed premises. Gaming machines may be made available for use in licensed betting 
premises only at times when there are also sufficient facilities for betting available. Operators will need to 
demonstrate that betting will continue to be the primary activity of the premise when seeking variations to 
licenses. 
 
In making this determination, this Licensing Authority will have regard to the six indicators of betting as a 
primary gambling activity. 

The offer of established core products (including live event pictures and bet range) 

The provision of information on products and events 

The promotion of gambling opportunities and products 
The actual use made of betting facilities 

The size of premises 

The delivery of betting facilities 
 
(ii) Definition of “available for use” 
 
Licensed premises are restricted by the 2005 Act to make “available for use” a number of gaming machines 
operating at each category from A-E.  The Act does not provide a definition for gaming machines made 
“available for use” however the Gambling Commission states in its Guidance to Licensing Authorities at 
paragraph 16.17 that it considers “available for use” to mean “if a person can take steps to play it without the 
assistance of the operator”. 
 
The maximum number of machines permitted, and in the case of casinos the ratios between tables and 
machines, is set out by premises type in Appendix A of the 2005 Act.  In calculating the number of gaming 

Page 72



 

 11 

machines made “available for use” on each licensed premises, the Licensing Authority considers the 
category they are operating on, as instructed in the Gambling Commission Guidance at paragraph 16.19 
which states that: 
 
“A machine that can operate at more than one category, which is operating at a lower category, does not 
contribute to the number of machines “available for use” at a higher category until it switches to that 
category.  Licensees must ensure no more than the permitted number are available for use” at any one 
time. 
 
The Gambling Commission Guidance also provides a specific note on calculating Category B gaming 
machine entitlement on gambling premises at paragraph 16.23 which states that such gaming macines 
“should only be counted if they can be played simultaneously by different players without physical 
hindrance”. 
 
The Licensing Authority will observe the aforementioned factors when deciding whether licensed gambling 
premises have met the statutory restrictions on maintaining gaming machines.  Importantly, however, the 
onus is on licensees to demonstrate that no more than the permitted number are “available for use” at any 
one time”.  
 
  
(iii) Definition of “premises” 
Premises is defined in the Act as “any place”.  Different Premises Licences cannot apply in respect of a 
single premises at different times.  However, it is possible for a single building to be subject to more than 
one Premises Licence, provided they are for different parts of the building and the different parts of the 
building can be reasonably regarded as being different premises.  This approach has been taken to allow 
large, multiple unit premises such as a pleasure park, pier, track or shopping mall to obtain discrete 
premises licences, where appropriate safeguards are in place. Whether different parts of a building can 
properly be regarded as being separate premises will always be a question of fact in the circumstances, and 
each application is taken on its own merits.   The Licensing Authority will require to pay particular attention 
to issues about sub-division of a single building or plot in order to ensure that mandatory conditions relating 
to access between premises are observed. 
 
The Gambling Commission states in its third edition of its Guidance to Licensing Authorities that “In most 
cases the expectation is that a single building/plot will be the subject of an application for a licence, for 
example, 32 High Street.  But, that does not mean 32 High Street cannot be the subject of separate 
Premises Licences for the basement and ground floor, if they are configured acceptably.  Whether different 
parts of a building can properly be regarded as being separate premises will depend on the circumstances.  
The location of the premises will clearly be an important consideration and the suitability of the division is 
likely to be a matter for discussion between the operator and the licensing officer.  However, the 
Commission does not consider that areas of a building that are artificially or temporarily separated, for 
example by ropes or moveable partitions, can properly be regarded as different premises.” 
 
This Licensing Authority takes particular note of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing 
Authorities at paragraph 7.18 which states that: “Licensing Authorities should take particular care in 
considering applications for multiple licences for a building and those relating to a discrete part of a building 
used for other (non gambling) purposes.  In particular, they should be aware of the fol lowing:  
 
 

 The third Licensing Objective seeks to protect children from being harmed by gambling.  In practice 
that means not only preventing them from taking part in gambling, but also preventing them from 
being in close proximity to gambling.  Therefore premises should be configured so that children are 

Page 73



 

 12 

not invited to participate in, have accidental access to or closely observe gaming where they are 
prohibited from participating. 

 
 Entrances to and exits from parts of a building covered by one or more Premises Licences should 

be separate and identifiable so the separation of different premises is not compromised and people 
do not “drift” into a gambling area.  In this context it should normally be possible to access the 
premises without going through another licensed premises or premises with a permit. 

   

 Customers should be able to participate in the activities named on the Premises Licence.” 
 
The Guidance also gives a list of factors which the Licensing Authority should be aware of, which may 
include: 
 

 Do the premises have a separate registration for business rates? 

 Is the premises’ neighbouring premises owned by the same person or someone else? 
 Can each of the premises be accessed from the street or a public passageway? 

 Can the premises only be accessed from another gambling premises?  
 
This Authority will consider these and other relevant factors in making its decision, depending on all the 
circumstances of the case.   
 
The Gambling Commission’s relevant access provisions for each premises type are reprodu ced 
below: 
 
Casinos  
 

 The principal access entrance to the premises must be from a street (as defined at paragraph 7.21 
of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance.) 

 No entrance to a casino must be from premises that are used wholly or mainly by children and/or 
young persons. 

 No person must be able to enter a casino directly from any other premises which hold a gambling 
premises licence.   

 
Adult Gaming Centre  
 

 No customer must be able to access the premises directly from any other licensed gambling 
premises. 

 
Betting Shops  
 

 Access must be from a street (as defined at paragraph 7.21 of the Gambling Commission’s 
Guidance) or from another premises with a betting premises Licence. 

 No direct access from a betting shop to another premises used for the retail sale of merchandise or 
services.  In effect, there cannot be an entrance to a betting shop from a shop of any kind and you 
could not have a betting shop at the back of a café – the whole area would require to be licensed.   

 
 
Tracks  
 

 No customer should be able to access the premises directly from:  

Page 74



 

 13 

(i) a casino  
(ii) an adult gaming centre  

 
Bingo Premises  
 

 No customer must be able to access the premises directly from;  
(i) a casino  
(ii) an adult gaming centre  
(iii) a betting premises, other than a track 

 
Family Entertainment Centre  
 

 No customer must be able to access the premises directly from;  
(i) a casino  
(ii) an adult gaming centre  
(iii) a betting premises, other than a track 

 
Part 7 of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities contains further guidance on this 
issue, which this Authority will also take into account in its decision-making.   
 
Premises “ready for gambling”   
 
The Gambling Commission’s Guidance states that a licence to use premises for gambling should only be 
issued in relation to premises that the Licensing Authority are satisfied will be ready to be used for gambling 
in the reasonably near future, considering the scale of the building works or alterations required before the 
premises are brought into use.   
 
If the construction of a premises is not yet complete, or if they need alteration, or if the applicant does not 
yet have a right to occupy them, then an application for a Provisional Statement should be made instead.   
 
In deciding whether a Premises Licence can be granted where there are outstanding construction or 
alteration works at a premises, this Authority will determine applications on their merits, applying a two stage 
consideration process:  
 

 First, whether the premises ought to be permitted to be used for gambling. 

 Second, whether appropriate conditions can be put in place to cater for the situation that the 
premises are not yet in the state in which they ought to be before gambling takes place.    

 As per the Gambling Commissions Guidance 
 

Applicants should note that this Authority is entitled to decide that it is appropriate to grant a licence 

subject to conditions, but it is not obliged to grant such a licence.   
 
More detailed examples of the circumstances in which such a licence may be granted can be found at 
paragraphs 7.56-7.65 of the Guidance.  
 
   
Location  
 
This Licensing Authority is aware that demand issues cannot be considered with regard to the location of 
premises but that considerations in terms of the Licensing Objectives can.  As per the Gambling 

Page 75



 

 14 

Commission’s Guidance for Local Authorities, this Authority will pay particular attention to the protection of 
children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling, as well as issues of crime and 
disorder.   This Licensing Authority will consider very carefully whether applications for Premises Licences in 
respect of certain gambling premises located very close to a school, a centre for gambling addicts, a 
vulnerable adult centre or to a residential area where there may be a high concentration of families with 
children should be granted in light of the third Licensing Objective.  Should any further specific policy be 
decided upon as regards areas where gambling premises should not be located, this Statement will be 
updated.  It should be noted that any such policy does not preclude any application being made and will 
depend to a large extent on the type of gambling that it is proposed will be offered on the premises and that  
each application will be decided on its merits, with the onus being placed upon the applicant  to show how 
Licensing Objective concerns can be overcome.  
 
Local risk assessments – from 6 April 2016, it is a requirement of the Gambling Commission’s Licence 
Conditions and Codes of Practice (LCCP), under Section 10, for licensees to assess the local risks to the 
licensing objectives posed by the provision of gambling facilities at their premises and have policies, 
procedures and control measures to mitigate those risks.  In making risk assessments, licensees must take 
into account relevant matters identified in this policy. 
The LCCP goes on to say licensees must review (and update as necessary) their local risk assessments: 

a. to take account of significant changes in local circumstance, including those identified in this policy; 

b. when there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may affect their mitigation of local 

risks; 

c. when applying for a variation of a premises licence; and 

d. in any case, under a local risk assessment when applying for a new premises licence. 

 

The Licensing Authority will expect the local risk assessment to consider as a minimum: 

 whether the premises is in an area of deprivation 

 whether the premises is in an area subject to high levels of crime and/or disorder 

 the demographics of the area in relation to vulnerable groups 

 the location of services for children such as schools, playgrounds, toy shops, leisure centres, other 

areas where children will gather and children’s walking routes to these. 

In any case the local risk assessment should show how vulnerable people, including people with gambling 

dependencies, are protected. 

The risk assessment should also include details of the following: 

 The training of staff in brief intervention when customers show signs of excessive gambling, the 

ability of staff to offer brief intervention and how the manning of premises affects this. 

 Details as to the location and coverage of working CCTV cameras, and how the system will be 

monitored. 

 The layout of the premises so that staff have an unobstructed view of persons using the premises. 

 The number of staff who will be available on the premises at any one time.  If at any time that 

number is one, the assessment should confirm the supervisory and monitoring arrangements when 

that person is absent from the licensed area or distracted from supervising the premises and 

observing those persons using the premises. 

Page 76



 

 15 

 Arrangements for monitoring and dealing with under age persons and vulnerable persons, which 

may include dedicated and trained personnel, leaflets, posters, self-exclusion schemes, window 

displays and advertisements not to entice passers-by etc. 

 The provision of signage and documents relating to games rules, gambling care providers and 

other relevant information, provided in both English and the other prominent first language for that 

locality. 

 Where the application is for a betting premises licence other than in respect of a track, the location 

and extent of any part of the premises which will be used to provide facilities for gambling in 

reliance on the licence. 

 

Such information may be used to inform the decision the Licensing Authority makes about whether to 

grant the licence, to grant the licence with special conditions or to refuse the application.   

This policy does not preclude any application being made and each application will be decided on i ts 

merits, with the onus being upon the applicant to show how the concerns can be overcome. 

Licence holders will be expected to hold their premises risk assessments on the premises and share 

them with the Licensing Authority on request. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Planning and Building Standards 
 
The Gambling Commission Guidance to Licensing Authorities states in:  
Paragraph 7.58 “In determining applications the Licensing Authority has a duty to take into consideration all 
relevant matters and not to take into consideration any irrelevant matters in effect, i.e. those not related to 
gambling and the licensing objectives.  One example of an irrelevant matter would be the likelihood of the 
applicant obtaining planning permission or building regulations approval for their proposal." 
The Gambling Commission Guidance to Licensing Authorities states: 
Paragraph 7.58 “In determining applications, the Licensing Authority should not take into consideration 
matters which are not related to gambling and the licensing objectives.  One example of an irrelevant matter 
would be the likelihood of the applicant obtaining planning permission or building regulations approval for 
their proposal." 
 
This Authority will not take into account irrelevant matters as per the above Guidance.  In addition, thi s 
Authority notes the following excerpt from the Guidance: 
Paragraph 7.65 “When dealing with a Premises Licence application for finished buildings, the Licensing 
Authority should not take into account whether those buildings have to comply with the necessary planning 
or buildings consents nor should fire or health and safety risks be taken into account.”  Those matters 
should be dealt with under the relevant planning control and building regulation powers, and not form part of 
the consideration for the Premises Licence.  “Section 210 of the Act prevents Licensing Authorities taking 
into account the likelihood of the proposal by the applicant obtaining planning or buil ding consent when 
considering a premises licence application.  Equally, the grant of a gambling premises licence does not 

Page 77



 

 16 

prejudice or prevent any action that may be appropriate under law relating to planning or building.” 
 
Duplication with other regulatory regimes – 
This Licensing Authority will seek to avoid any duplication with other statutory / regulatory systems where 
possible, including planning.  This Authority will not consider whether premises which are the subject of a 
licence application are likely to be awarded planning permission or building consent, in its consideration of 
the licence application.  However, this Authority will listen to, and consider carefully, any concerns about 
conditions which licensees are not able to meet due to planning restrictions, should such a situation arise. 
 
When dealing with a Premises Licence application for finished buildings, this Authority cannot take into 
account whether those buildings have to comply with the necessary planning or building consents.  Fire or 
health and safety risks cannot be taken into account, as these matters are dealt with under relevant 
planning control, building and other regulations and must not form part of the consideration for the premises 
licence.   
 
Licensing objectives  
Premises Licences granted must be reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives.  With regard to 
these Objectives, this Licensing Authority has considered the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to 
Licensing Authorities and some comments are made below. 
 
Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or 
disorder or being used to support crime. 
 
The Gambling Commission takes a leading role in preventing gambling from being a source of crime.  The 
Gambling Commission's Guidance does however envisage that Licensing Authorities should pay attention to 
the proposed location of gambling premises in the context of this licensing objective.  Thus, where an area 
has known high levels of organised crime this Authority will consider carefully whether gambling premises 
are suitable to be located there and whether conditions may be suitable such as the provision of door 
supervisors and will consider factors such as whether police assistance was required and how threatening 
the behaviour was to those who could see or hear it, so as to assess whether nuisance or disorder has 
taken place. In terms of the Guidance to Licensing Authorities, paragraph 5.5 states that “…disorder is 
intended to mean activity that is more serious and disruptive than mere nuisance.”   Issues of nuisance 
cannot be addressed via the Gambling Act provisions. 
 
Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way  
This Licensing Authority has noted that the Gambling Commission in its Guidance for Licensing Authorities 
has stated that “Generally the Commission would not expect Licensing Authorities to become concerned 
with ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way as this will be a matter for either the 
management of the gambling business, and therefore subject to the operating licence, or will be in relation 
to the suitability and actions of an individual and therefore subject to the personal licence.  (However, if 
Licensing Authorities suspect that gambling is not being conducted in a fair and open way, this should be 
brought to the attention of the Commission so that it can consider the continuing suitability of the operator to 
hold an Operating Licence or of an individual, to hold a personal licence.)”  
 
This Licensing Authority also notes, however, that the Gambling Commission also states “in relation to the 
licensing of tracks the Licensing Authorities’ role will be different from other premises in that track operators 
will not necessarily have an Operating Licence.  In those circumstances, the Premises Licence may need to 
contain conditions to ensure that the environment in which betting takes place is suitable.”    Further 
information on tracks is contained in section 7 below.   
 
Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling   

Page 78



 

 17 

This Licensing Authority has noted the Gambling Commission's Guidance for Licensing Authorities states 
that “The Objective refers of protecting children from being “harmed or exploited by gambling”.  That means 
preventing them from taking part in gambling….” (as well as restrictions on advertising so that gambling 
products are not aimed at or are, particularly attractive to children).  The Licensing Authority will therefore 
consider, as suggested in the Gambling Commission's Guidance, whether specific measures are required at 
particular premises, with regard to this Licensing Objective.  Appropriate measures may include supervision 
of entrances / machines, segregation of areas etc. Licence holders are reminded that they must comply with 
Part 3.2 of the LCCP relating to the access to gambling by children and young persons. 
 

This Licensing Authority will pay particular attention to any Codes of Practice which the Gambling 
Commission issues as regards this Licensing Objective in relation to specific premises such as casinos.  It is 
understood that a Code for casinos must: 
 

 specify steps that the Premises Licence holder must take to ensure that children and young 
persons (that is those under the age of 18) do not enter casino premises, or in the case of the 
regional casino, do not enter the gambling area; 

 amongst those specified steps, ensure that each entrance to the casino or gambling area is 
supervised by at least one person (“the supervisor”) who is responsible for compliance with the 
Code of Practice; and 

 require that, unless the supervisor is certain that a person seeking admittance is an adult, evidence 
of age must be required of all those seeking to enter the casino or gambling area. 

 

As regards the term “vulnerable persons,” it is noted that the Gambling Commission is not seeking to offer a 
definition but states that “it will for regulatory purposes assume that this group includes people who gamble 
more than they want to; people who gambling beyond their means; and people who may not be able to 
make informed or balanced decisions about gambling due to a mental health needs, learning disability or 
substance misuse relating to, alcohol or drugs.”  This Licensing Authority will consider this Licensing 
Objective on a case by case basis.  Should a practical definition prove possible in future then this policy 
statement will be updated with it, by way of a revision. 
 
To achieve the licensing objective of “protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed 
or exploited by gambling”, the Licensing Authority expects all gambling licensed premises and premises with 
gambling permits to have policies in place to help safeguard children and vulnerable adults.   
 

Conditions  
Any conditions attached to licences will be proportionate and will be: 

 relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling facility; 

 directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for; 

 fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises; and 
 reasonable in all other respects.  
 

Decisions upon individual conditions will be made on a case by case basis, although there will be a number 
of measures this Licensing Authority will consider utilising should there be a perceived need, such as the 
use of supervisors, appropriate signage for adult only areas etc.  There are specific comments made in this 
regard under some of the licence types below.  This Licensing Authority will also expect the licence 
applicant to offer his/her own suggestions as to way in which the licensing Objectives can be met effectively. 
 

This Licensing Authority will also consider specific measures which may be required for buildings which are 
subject to multiple Premises Licences.  Such measures may include the supervision of entrances; 
segregation of gambling from non-gambling areas frequented by children; and the supervision of gaming 
machines in non-adult gambling specific premises in order to pursue the Licensing Objectives.  These 
matters are in accordance with the Gambling Commission's Guidance. 

Page 79



 

 18 

 

This Authority will also ensure that where category C or above machines (which may only be used by 
persons over the age of 18 years) are on offer in premises to which children are admitted: 

 all such machines are located in an area of the premises which is separated from the remainder of the 
premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent access other than through a designated 
entrance; 

 only adults are admitted to the area where these machines are located; 

 access to the area where the machines are located is supervised; 

 the area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed by the staff or the 
licence holder; and 

 at the entrance to and inside any such areas there are prominently displayed notices indicating that 
access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18. 

 
These considerations will apply to premises including buildings where multiple Premises Licences are 
applicable. 
 
This Licensing Authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than one Premises Licence, 
provided each licence relates to a specified area of the track.  As per the Gambling Commission's Guidance, 
this Licensing Authority will consider the impact upon the third Licensing Objective and the need to ensure 
that entrances to each type of premises are distinct and that children are excluded from gambling areas 
where they are not permitted to enter. 
 
It is noted that there are conditions which the licensing authority cannot attach to Premises Licences which 
are: 
 any condition on the Premises Licence which makes it impossible to comply with an Operating Licence 

condition;  

 conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of operation; 

 conditions which provide that membership of a club or body be required (the Act specifically removes 
the membership requirement for casino and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being reinstated); 
and 

 conditions in relation to stakes, fees, winning or prizes. 
 
 
Door Supervisors  
The Gambling Commission advises in its Guidance to Licensing Authorities that if a Licensing Authority is 
concerned that a premises may attract disorder or be subject to attempts at unauthorised access (for 
example by children and young persons) then it may require that the entrances to the premises are 
controlled by a door supervisor, and is entitled to impose a premises licence condition to this effect. 
 
Where it is decided that supervision of entrances/machines is appropriate for particular cases, a 
consideration of whether those carrying out such duties will require to be licensed under the Private Security 
Industry Act 2001 will be necessary.  It will not be automatically assumed that they need to be licensed, as 
the statutory requirements for different premises vary (as per the Gambling Commission’s Guidance, Part 
33.)  
 
 
It should be noted that the above paragraphs relate to door supervisors only in relation to Premises 
Licences granted under the Gambling Act 2005.  Where a Premises Licence has also been granted under  
the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005, in relation to the same premises, there may also be conditions on that 
licence which relate to door supervisors.  The Premises Licence holder under the Licensing (Scotland) Act 
2005, should ensure compliance with those conditions.   

Page 80



 

 19 

 
 
 

Page 81



 

 20 

 
 
2. Adult Gaming Centres 
This Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable persons 
from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the Authority that there will 
be sufficient measures to meet the Licensing Objectives (for example, ensure that under 18 year olds do not 
have access to the premises).   Appropriate licence conditions may cover issues such as: 
 

 Proof of age schemes 

 CCTV 

 Door supervisors 

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas 
 Physical separation of areas 

 Location of entry 

 Notices / signage 

Specific opening hours  

Self-exclusion schemes 

Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare, Gamblers 
Anonymous Scotland & other support organisations. 

 
This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example measures. 
 
As regards the protection of vulnerable persons, this Licensing Authority will consider measures suc h as the 
use of self-barring schemes, provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare, Gamblers Anonymous Scotland & other support organisations. 
 
3. (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres: 
 
This Licensing Authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable persons 
from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the Authority, for example, 
that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the adult only 
gaming machine areas.   
 
This Licensing Authority will expect applicants to offer their own measures to meet the Licensing Objectives 
however appropriate measures / licence conditions may cover issues such as: 
 

 Proof of age schemes 

 CCTV 

 Door supervisors 

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas 

 Physical separation of areas 

 Location of entry 

 Notices / signage 

 Specific opening hours 

 Self-barring schemes  
 Provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare. 

 Measures / training for staff on how to deal with suspected truant school children on the premises 
 
This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example measures. 

Page 82



 

 21 

 
As regards the protection of vulnerable persons, this Authority will consider measures such as the use of 
self-barring schemes, provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare, Gamblers Anonymous Scotland & other support organisations. 
 
This Licensing Authority will, as per the Gambling Commission’s guidance, refer to the Commission’s 
website to see any conditions that apply to Operating Licences covering the way in which the area 
containing the category C machines should be delineated.  This Licensing Authority will also make itself 
aware of any mandatory or default conditions on these Premises Licences, when they have been published.   
 
4. Casinos 
No Casinos resolution  
This Licensing Authority has not passed a ‘no casino’ resolution under Section 166 of the Gambling Act 
2005, but is aware that it has the power to do so.   Should this Licensing Authority decide in the future to 
pass such a resolution, it will update this Policy Statement with details of that resolution.  Any such decision 
will be made by the Licensing Board.   
 
Casinos and competitive bidding  
This Licensing Authority is aware that where a Licensing Authority area is enabled to grant a Premises 
Licence for a new style casino (i.e. where such regulations have been made under Section 175 of the Act ) 
there are likely to be a number of operators which will want to run the casino.   
 
In such situations the Licensing Authority will run a ‘competition’ under Schedule 9 of the Gambling Act 
2005.    This Licensing Authority will run such a competition in line with the Gambling (Inviting Competing 
Applications for Large and Small Casino Premises Licences) Regulations 2008, as well as following the 
procedure set out in Part 17 of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance. 
 
Licence considerations / conditions -   This Licensing Authority will attach conditions to casino Premises 
Licences according to the principles set out in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance at Part 9, bearing in 
mind the mandatory conditions listed in Part 17 of the Guidance and the Licence Conditions and Codes of 
Practice published by the Gambling Commission.   
 
Betting machines -   This Licensing Authority will, as per the Gambling Commission’s Guidance, take into 
account the size of the premises, the number of counter positions available for person-to-person 
transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons (it is 
an offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the 
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer.   
 
 
5. Bingo premises 
 
This Licensing Authority notes that the Gambling Commission’s Guidance states: 
 
“Licensing Authorities will need to satisfy themselves that bingo can be played in any bingo p remises for 
which they issue a premises licence.  This is a relevant consideration where the operator of an existing 
bingo premises applies to vary their licence to exclude an area of the existing premises from its ambit and 
then applies for a new premises licence, or multiple licences, for that or those excluded premises.   
 
This authority also notes that from 13 July 2011 a holder of a bingo premises licence may make available for 
use a number of category B gaming machines not exceeding 20% of the total number of gaming machines 
which are available for use on the premises. A licence variation must be applied for if operators wish to take 

Page 83



 

 22 

advantage of this change to the legislation.  
 
This Authority also notes the Gambling Commission’s Guidance at paragraph 18.9 regarding the unusual 
circumstances in that an existing bingo premises covered by one premises licence applies to vary the 
licence and acquire additional bingo premises licences (so that the area that was the subject of a single 
licence will becomes divided between a number of separate licensed premises) it is not permissible for all of 
the gaming machines to which each of the licences brings an entitlement to be grouped together within one 
of the licensed premises.  
 
It is important that if children are allowed to enter premises licensed for bingo that they do not participate in 
gambling, other than on category D machines.  Where category C or above machines are available in 
premises to which children are admitted Licensing Authorities should ensure that: 

 all such machines are located in an area of the premises separated from the remainder of the 
premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent access other than through a designated 
entrance;  

 only adults are admitted to the area where the machines are located; 

 access to the area where the machines are located is supervised; 

 the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed by staff of the operator 
or the licence holder; and 

 at the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently displayed notices indicating that 
access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18. 

 
 
6. Betting premises 
 
Betting machines  
It is noted that the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for Licensing Authorities states: “Section 181 contains 
an express power for Licensing Authorities to restrict the number of betting machines, their nature and the 
circumstances in which they are made available by attaching a licence condition to a betting premises 
licence or to a casino premises licence (where betting is permitted in the casino).  When considering 
whether to impose a condition to restrict the number of betting machines in particular premises, the 
Licensing Authority, amongst other things, should take into account the size of the premises, the number of 
counter positions available for person-to-person transactions, and the ability of employees to monitor the 
use of the machines by children and young persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to bet) or by 
vulnerable persons”.   
It is noted that the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for Licensing Authorities states: “Section 181 contains 
an express power for Licensing Authorities to restrict the number of SSBTs, their nature and the 
circumstances in which they are made available by attaching a lic ence condition to a betting premises 
licence or to a casino premises licence (where betting is permitted in the casino).  When considering 
whether to impose a condition to restrict the number of SBBTs in particular premises, the Licensing 
Authority, amongst other things,  the ability of employees to monitor the use of the machines by children and 
young persons or by vulnerable people”. 
 
7. Tracks 

 
This Licensing Authority is aware that tracks may be subject to one or more than one Premises 
Licence, provided each licence relates to a specified area of the track.  As per the Gambling 

Commission’s Guidance, this Licensing Authority will especially consider the impact upon the third 
Licensing Objective (i.e. the protection of children and vulnerable persons from being harmed or 
exploited by gambling) and the need to ensure that entrances to each type of premises are distinct 

Page 84



 

 23 

and that children are excluded from gambling areas where they are not permitted to enter.   
 

This Authority will therefore expect the Premises Licence applicant to demonstrate suitable 
measures to ensure that children do not have access to adult only gaming facilities.  It is noted that 
children and young persons will be permitted to enter track areas where facilities for betting are 

provided on days when dog racing and/or horse racing takes place, but that they are still prevented 
from entering areas where gaming machines (other than category D machines) are provided.   
 
 This Licensing Authority may consider measures to meet the Licensing Objectives such as:-  

 Proof of age schemes 

 CCTV 

 Door supervisors 

 Supervision of entrances / machine areas 

 Physical separation of areas 

 Location of entry 

 Notices / signage 

 Specific opening hours 

 The location of gaming machines  
 
 
This list is not mandatory, nor exhaustive, and is merely indicative of example measures. 
 
As regards the protection of vulnerable persons, this licensing authority will consider measures such as the 
use of self-barring schemes, provision of information leaflets / helpline numbers for organisations such as 
GamCare. 
 

Gaming machines  Where the applicant holds a pool betting operating licence and is going to use his 
entitlement to four gaming machines, machines (other than category D machines) should be located in 
areas from which children are excluded.  
Betting machines This Licensing Authority will, as per Part 16 of the Gambling Commission’s Guidance, 
take into account the size of the premises and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by 
children and young persons (it is an offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when 
considering the number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator proposes to offer.   
 
This Licensing Authority also notes that, “In the Commission’s view, it would be preferable for all self-
contained premises operated by off-course betting operators on track to be the subject of separate 
Premises Licences.  This would ensure that there was clarity between the respective responsibilities of the 
track operator and the off-course betting operator running a self-contained unit on the premises”. 
 
 
Application and Plans 
 
Section 151 of the Gambling Act, requires applicants to submit plans of the premises with their application, 
in order to ensure that the Licensing Authority has the necessary information to make an informed 
judgement about whether the premises are fit for gambling.  The plan will also be used for the Licensing 
Authority to plan future premises inspection activity.  (See the Gambling Commission’s Guidance, paragraph 
20.43.   
 
Plans for tracks do not need to be in a particular scale, but should be drawn to scale and should be 
sufficiently detailed to include the information required by regulations.  (See the Gambling Commission’s 

Page 85



 

 24 

Guidance, paragraph 20.44.   
 
Some tracks may be situated on agricultural land where the perimeter is not defined by virtue of an outer 
wall or fence, such as point-to-point racetracks. In such instances, where an entry fee is levied, track 
premises licence holders may erect temporary structures to restrict access to premises. 
 
In the rare cases where the outer parameter cannot be defined, it is likely that the track in question will not 
be specifically designed for the frequent holding of sporting events or races.  In such cases, betting facilities 
may be better provided through Occasional Use Notices where the boundary premises do not need to be 
defined.  (See the Gambling Commission’s Guidance, Part 15.   
 
This Authority appreciates that it is sometimes difficult to define the precise location of betting areas on 
tracks.  The precise location of where betting facilities are provided is not required to be shown on track 
plans, both by virtue of the fact that betting is permitted anywhere on the premises and because of the 
difficulties associated with pinpointing exact locations for some types of track.  Applicants should provide 
sufficient information so that this Authority can satisfy itself that the plan indicates the main areas where 
betting might take place.  For racecourses in particular, any betting areas subject to the “five times rule ” 
(commonly known as betting rings) must be included on the plan.  (See the Gambling Commission’s 
Guidance, paragraph 20.46. 
 
 
8. Travelling Fairs 
 
It will fall to this Licensing Authority to decide whether, where category D machines and/or equal chance 
prize gaming without a permit is to be made available for use at travelling fairs, the statutory requirement 
that the facilities for gambling amount to no more than an ancillary amusement at the fair is met. 
 
The Licensing Authority will also consider whether the applicant falls within the statutory definition of a 
travelling fair. 
 
It has been noted that the 27-day statutory maximum for the land being used as a fair, is per calendar year, 
and that it applies to the piece of land on which the fairs are held, regardless of whether it is the same or 
different travelling fairs occupying the and not in any 12 month period as per 30.5.  This Licensing Authority 
will work with its neighbouring Authorities to ensure that land which crosses our boundaries is monitored  so 
that the statutory limits are not exceeded. 
 
 
9. Provisional Statements 
 
Developers may wish to apply to this Authority for Provisional Statements before entering into a contract to 
buy or lease property or land to judge whether a development is worth taking forward in light of the need to 
obtain a Premises Licence.  There is no need for the applicant to hold an Operating Licence in order to 
apply for a Provisional Statement.   
 
Section 204 of the Gambling Act, provides for a person to make an application to the Licensing Authority for 
a Provisional Statement in respect of premises that he or she:  
 

 Expects to be constructed; 

 Expects to be altered, or  

 Expects to acquire a right to occupy.   
 

Page 86



 

 25 

The process for considering an application for a Provisional Statement is the same as that for a Premises 
Licence application.  The applicant is obliged to give notice of the application in the same way as applying 
for a Premises Licence.  Responsible authorities and interested parties may make representations and there 
are rights of appeal.   
 
The Gambling Act (Premises Licences and Provisional Statements) (Scotland) Regulations 2007, prescribe 
the form in which Provisional Statement applications should be made.   
 
In contrast to the Premises Licence application, the applicant does not have to hold or have applied for an 
Operating Licence from the Gambling Commission (except in the case of a track) and they do not have to 
have a right to occupy the premises in respect of which their provisional application is made. 
 
The holder of a Provisional Statement may then apply for a Premises Licence once the premises are 
constructed, altered or acquired.  The Licensing Authority will be constrained in the matters it can consider 
when determining the Premises Licence application, and in terms of representations about Premises 
Licence applications that follow the grant of a Provisional Statement, no further representations from 
relevant authorities or interested parties can be taken in to account unless: 
 
 

 They concern matters which could not have been addressed at the Provisional Statement stage, or  

 They reflect a change in the applicant’s circumstances. 
 
 
In addition, the Authority may refuse the Premises Licence (or grant it on terms different to those attached to 
the Provisional Statement) only by reference to matters:  
 
 

 Which could not have been raised by representations at the Provisional licence stage; 

 Which in the Authority’s opinion reflect a change in the operator’s circumstances; or  

 Where the premises has not been constructed in accordance with the plan submitted with the 
application and information submitted with the provisional statement application.  This must be a 
substantial change to the plan and this Licensing Authority notes that it can discuss any concerns it 
has with the applicant before making a decision. 

 
 
10. Reviews 
 
Requests for a review of a Premises Licence can be made by interested parties or responsible authorities.  
However, it is for the Licensing Authority to decide whether the review is to be carried out.  This will be on 
the basis of whether the request for the review is relevant to the matters listed below: 
 

 in accordance with any relevant Code of Practice issued by the Gambling Commission; 

 in accordance with any relevant Guidance issued by the Gambling Commission; 

 reasonably consistent with the Licensing Objectives; and 

 in accordance with the Authority’s Statement of Licensing Policy. 
 
The request for the review will also be subject to the consideration by the Authority as to whether the 
request is frivolous, vexatious or whether it will certainly not cause this Authority to wish to 
alter/revoke/suspend the licence, or whether it is substantially the same as previous representations or 
requests for review. 

Page 87



 

 26 

 
The Licensing Authority can also initiate a review of a particular Premises Licence, or a particular class of 
Premises Licence on the basis of any reason which it thinks is appropriate.   
 
Once a valid application for a review has been received by the Licensing Authority, representations can be 
made by responsible authorities and interested parties during a 28 day period.  This period begins 7 days 
after the application was received by the Licensing Authority, who will publish notice of the application within 
7 days of receipt.   
 
The Licensing Authority must carry out the review as soon as possible after the 28 day period for making 
representations has passed. 
 
The purpose of the review will be to determine whether the Licensing Authority should take any action in 
relation to the licence.  If action is justified, the options open to the Licensing Authority are:  
 

(a) Add, remove or amend a licence condition imposed by the Licensing Authority;  
 

(b) Exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State or Scottish Ministers (e.g. 
opening hours) or remove or amend such an exclusion;  

 
(c) Suspend the Premises Licence for a period not exceeding three months; and  

 
(d) Revoke the Premises Licence. 

 
 
In determining what action, if any, should be taken following a review, the Licensing Authority must have 
regard to the principles set out in Section 153 of the Act, as well as any relevant representations. 
 
Risk assessments – in considering review of premises licences, the Board will have regard to the terms of 
risk assessments carried out by licence holders, and the extent to which their assessments have identified, 
and the steps the licence holder will take to mitigate risk. 
 
In particular, the Licensing Authority may also initiate a review of a Premises Licence on the grounds that a 
Premises Licence holder has not provided facilities for gambling at the premises.  This is to prevent people 
from applying for licences in a speculative manner without intending to use them.   
 
 
The licensing authority must hold a hearing, unless the applicant and any person who has made 
representations that have not been withdrawn (that are not vexatious, frivolous or irrelevant) consent to  the 
review being conducted without one. 
Once the review has been completed, the Licensing Authority must, as soon as possible, notify its decision 
to:  
 

 The licence holder                                   
 Any person who made representations 

 The applicant for review (if any.)             

 The Chief Constable; and 

 The Commission                                     

 Her Majesty’s Commissioners for Revenue & Customs             
 

Page 88



 

 27 

 
 

PART C 
Permits / Temporary & Occasional Use Notice 

 
1. Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits (Statement of Principles on 
Permits - Schedule 10 paragraph 7) 
 
Where a premises does not hold a Premises Licence but wishes to provide gaming machines, it may apply 
to the Licensing Authority for this permit.  It should be noted that the applicant must show that the premises 
will be wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available for use (Section 238). 
 
The Gambling Act 2005, states that a Licensing Authority may prepare a Statement of Principles that they 
propose to consider in determining the suitability of an applicant for a permit and in preparing this 
Statement, and/or considering applications, it need not (but may) have regard to the Licensing Objectives 
and shall have regard to any relevant guidance issued by the Commission under section 25.  The Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance for Licensing Authorities also states: “In their three year Licensing Policy 
Statement, Licensing Authorities may include a Statement of Principles that they propose to apply when 
exercising their functions in considering applications for permits…., Licensing Authorities will want to give 
weight to matters relating to child protection issues." 24.8. 
 
“In their three year Licensing Policy Statement, Licensing Authorities may include a Statement of Principles 
that they propose to apply when exercising their functions in considering applications for permits…., 
Licensing Authorities may want to give weight to matters relating to protection of children being harmed or 
exploited by gambling and to ensure that staff supervision adequately reflects the level of risk to this group" 
24.8 
 
The  Gambling Commission’s Guidance also states: “...An application for a permit may be granted only if the 
Licensing Authority is satisfied that the premises will be used as an Unlicensed Family Entertainment Centre 
(UFEC), and if the Chief Constable has been consulted on the application …Licensing Authorities might 
wish to consider asking applicants to demonstrate:  
 

 A full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the gambling that is permissible in 
unlicensed FECs. 

 That the applicant has no relevant convictions (those that are set out in Schedule 7 of the Act.) 

 That employees are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes.” 24.9 
 
It should be noted that a Licensing Authority cannot attach conditions to this type of permit.  
 
A plan for the UFEC must be submitted. 
 
 
Statement of Principles   
This Licensing Authority will expect the applicant to show that there are policies and procedures in place to 
protect children from harm.  Harm in this context is not limited to harm from gambling but includes wider 
child protection considerations.  The efficiency of such policies and procedures will each be considered on 
their merits, however, they may include, Disclosure Scotland checks for staff, training covering how staff 
would deal with unsupervised very young children being on the premises, or children causing perceived 
problems on / around the premises.  This licensing authority will also expect, as per Gambling Commission 
Guidance, that applicants demonstrate a full understanding of the maximum stakes and prizes of the 
gambling that is permissible in unlicensed FECs; that the applicant has no relevant convictions (those that 

Page 89



 

 28 

are set out in Schedule 7 of the Act); and that staff are trained to have a full understanding of the maximum 
stakes and prizes. 
 
With regard to renewals of these permits, a Licensing Authority may refuse an application for renewal of a 
permit only on the grounds that an authorised Local Authority Officer has been refused access to the 
premises without reasonable excuse, or that renewal would not be reasonably consistent with pursuit of the 
Licensing Objectives. 
 
 
2. (Alcohol) Licensed premises gaming machine permits - (Schedule 13 paragraph 4(1)) 
 
There is provision in writing in the Act for premises licensed to sell alcohol for consumption on the premises, 
to automatically have 2 gaming machines, of categories C and/or D.  The premises merely need to notify the 
Licensing Authority and pay the relevant fee and comply with any relevant Code of Practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission about the location and operation of he machine is complied with .  The Licensing 
Authority can remove the automatic authorisation in respect of any particular premises if: 

 provision of the machines is not reasonably consistent with the pursuit of the Licensing Objectives; 

 gaming has taken place on the premises that breaches a condition of section 282 of the Gambling Act 
(i.e. that written notice has been provided to the Licensing Authority, that a fee has been provided and 
that any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission about the location and operation 
of the machine has been complied with);  

 the premises are mainly used for gaming; or 

 an offence under the Gambling Act has been committed on the premises. 
 
Permit: 3 or More Machines 
If a premises wishes to have more than 2 machines, then it needs to apply for a permit and the Licensing 
Authority must consider that application based upon the Licensing Objectives, any Guidance and Code of 
Practice issued by the Gambling Commission, issued under Sections 24 and 25 of the Gambling Act 2005, 
and “such matters as they think relevant.”   This Licensing Authority considers that “such matters” will be 
decided on a case by case basis but generally there will be regard to the need to protect children and 
vulnerable persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the 
Authority that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18 year olds do not have access to the 
adult only gaming machines.  Measures which will satisfy the Authority that there will be no access may 
include the adult machines being in sight of the bar, or in the sight of staff who will monitor th at the 
machines are not being used by those under 18.  Notices and signage may also be of help.  As regards the 
protection of vulnerable persons, applicants may wish to consider the provision of information leaflets / 
helpline numbers for organisations such as GamCare. 
 
It is recognised that some alcohol licensed premises may apply for a premises licence for their non-alcohol 
licensed areas.  Any such application would most likely need to be applied for, and dealt with as an Adult 
Gaming Centre premises licence 
               
It should be noted that the Licensing Authority can decide to grant the application with a smaller number of 
machines and/or a different category of machines than that applied for, but if minded to do so will give the 
applicant an opportunity to make representations.  Conditions (other than these) cannot be attached. 
 
It should also be noted that the holder of such a permit must comply with any Code of Practice issued by the 
Gambling Commission about the location and operation of the mac hine. 
 
 
 

Page 90



 

 29 

 
 
 
3. Prize Gaming Permits   
 
The Gambling Act 2005, states that a Licensing Authority may “prepare a Statement of Principles that they 
propose to apply in exercising their functions under this Schedule” which “may, in particular, specify matters 
that the Licensing Authority propose to consider in determining the suitability of the applicant for a permit”.   
 
This Licensing Authority has prepared a Statement of Principles which is that the applicant should set out 
the types of gaming that he or she is intending to offer and that the applicant should be able to demonstrate:  

 That they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in Regulations; and 

 That the gaming offered is within the law. 

 Clear policies that outline the steps to be taken to protect children from harm  
 
In making its decision on an application for this permit the Licensing Authority does not need to have regard 
to the Licensing Objectives but must have regard to any Gambling Commission guidance.  (Gambling Act 
2005, Schedule 14 paragraph 8(3)).   
 
It should be noted that there are conditions in the Gambling Act 2005, with which the permit holder must 
comply, but that the Licensing Authority cannot attach conditions.  The conditions in the Act are: 
 the limits on participation fees, as set out in regulations, must be complied with; 

 all chances to participate in the gaming must be allocated on the premises on which the gaming is 
taking place and on one day; the game must be played and completed on the day the chances are  
allocated; and the result of the game must be made public in the premises on the day that it is played;  

 the prize for which the game is played must not exceed the amount set out in regulations (if a money 
prize), or the prescribed value (if non-monetary prize); and 

 Participation in the gaming must not entitle the player to take part in any other gambling.  
 
4. Club Gaming Permits and Club Machine Permits 
 
There are two types of club permit available under the 2005 Act - a Club Gaming Permit and a Club Gaming 
Machine Permit. The Club Gaming Permits allow the provision of no more than 3 gaming machines.  These 
may be from categories B3A, B4, C and D but only one B3A machine can be sited as part of this 
entitlement, as well as per 25.26 unlimited equal chance gaming and games of chance as set out in the 
Gambling Act 2005 (Club Gaming Permits) (Authorised Gaming) Regulations 2007, which are pontoon and 
chemin de fer.  The Club Machine permit merely permits the use of up to 3 gaming machines of category 
B3A, B4 C and D as per 25.32. 
 
There are 3 types of clubs defined in the 2005 Act: Members’ Clubs, Commercial Clubs, and Miners’ welfare 
institutes. The Club Machine permit is available for all three, but the Club Gaming permit may only be 
applied for by Members’ Clubs and Miner’s Welfare Institutes not commercial clubs. NB Commercial Clubs 
may not site category B3A gaming machines offering lottery games in their club. 
 
Gambling Commission Guidance for Licensing Authorities states: "Members clubs must have at least 25 
members and be established and conducted “wholly or mainly” for purposes other than gaming, unless the 
gaming is restricted to bridge and whist.  Members clubs must be permanent in nature, but there is no need 
for an alcohol licence. The Secretary of State has made regulation and these cover bridge and whist clubs”,  
that members’ clubs must have at least 25 members and be established and conducted ‘wholly or mainly’ 
for purposes other than gaming, unless the gaming is restricted to that of a prescribed kind (currently bridge 

Page 91



 

 30 

and whist). Members’ clubs must be permanent in nature but there is no need for a club to have an alcohol 
licence." 
which will replicate the position under the Gaming Act 1968.  A members’ club must be permanent in nature, 
not established to make commercial profit, and controlled by its members equally.  Examples include 
working men’s clubs, branches of Royal British Legion and clubs with political affiliations."  
 
The Gambling Commission’s Guidance also makes it clear that particular care should be taken when 
assessing applications for gaming permits which have been used for illegal poker clubs under the guise of 
members clubs.  Experience very strongly indicates that taking care at the application stage in robustly 
checking the credentials of the applicant will save a great deal of time and effort afterwards as per 25.2. 
 
This Licensing Authority notes that the Gambling Commission’s Guidance states that the Licensing Authority 
has to satisfy itself that the club meets the requirements of the Act to obtain a club gaming permit. In doing 
so it will take account a number of matters as outlined in sections 25.45-25.47 of the Gambling 
Commission’s Guidance. These include the constitution of the club, the frequency of gaming, and ensuri ng 
that there are more than 25 members. The Gambling Commission’s Guidance also makes it clear that 
holders of licensed premises club machine permits are required to comply with the code of practice which 
has been issued by the commission on the location and operation of machines as per 25.34. 
 
This Licensing Authority is aware that: “Licensing authorities may only refuse an application on the grounds 
that: 
(a) the applicant does not fulfil the requirements for a members’ or commercial club or miners’ welfare 

institute and therefore is not entitled to receive the type of permit for which it has applied; 
(b)  the applicant’s premises are used wholly or mainly by children and/or young persons; 
(c) an offence under the Act or a breach of a permit has been committed by the applicant while providing 

gaming facilities; 
(d)  a permit held by the applicant has been cancelled in the previous ten years; or 
(e) an objection has been lodged by the Commission or the police (Gambling Commission’s Guidance for 

Local Authorities 25.38 
 
There are statutory conditions on club gaming permits that no child or young person as per 25.22 uses a 
category B or C machine on the premises and that the holder complies with any relevant provision of a code 
of practice about the location and operation of gaming machines. 
 
5. Temporary Use Notices 
 
Temporary Use Notices allow the use of premises for gambling where there is no Premises Licence but 
where a gambling operator wishes to use the premises temporarily for providing facilities for gambling.  
Premises that might be suitable for a Temporary Use Notice, according to the Gambling Commission, would 
include hotels, conference centres and sporting venues. 
 
The Licensing Authority can only grant a Temporary Use Notice to a person or company holding a relevant 
Operating Licence, i.e. a non-remote casino Operating Licence.   
 
The Secretary of State has the power to determine what form of gambling can be authorised by Temporary 
Use Notices, and at the time of writing this Statement, the relevant regulations (SI no. 3157: The Gambling 
Act 2005 (Temporary Use Notices) Regulations 2007) state that Temporary Use Notices can only be used 
to permit the provision of facilities for equal chance gaming, where the gaming is intended to produce a 
single winner. Equal chance gaming is defined in the 2005 Act as a form of gaming which does not involve a 
banker, and the chances of winning are equally favourable to all participants. Although most commonly 
associated with poker, the definition also includes such games as bingo, bridge, dominoes, cribbage 

Page 92



 

 31 

amongst others. 
 
There are a number of statutory limits as regards Temporary Use Notices.  The meaning of “premises” in 
Part 8 of the Act is discussed in Part 7 of the Gambling Commission Guidance to Licensing Authorities.  As 
with “premises,” the definition of “a set of premises” will be a question of fact in the particular circumstances 
of each Notice that is given.  In the Act, “premises” is defined as including “any place.”  In considering 
whether a place falls within the definition of a “set of premises,” the Licensing Authority needs to look at, 
amongst other things, the ownership/occupation and control of the premises.   
 
This Licensing Authority will normally object to Notices where it appears that their effect would be to permit 
regular gambling in a place that could be described as one set of premises, as recommended in the 
Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Licensing Authorities in part 14.14 
 
 
6. Occasional Use Notices: 
 
The Licensing Authority has very little discretion as regards these Notices aside from ensuring that the 
statutory limit of 8 days in a calendar year is not exceeded.  This Licensing Authority will however consider 
the definition of a ‘track’ and whether the applicant is permitted to avail him/herself of the Notice.   
 
 
7. Small Society Lotteries 
 
This Licensing Authority will adopt a risk based approach towards its enforcement responsibilities for small 
society lotteries. This authority considers that the following list, although not exclusive, could affect the risk 
status of the operator: 
● submission of late returns (returns must be submitted no later than three months after the date on 

which the lottery draw was held) 

 submission of incomplete or incorrect returns 

 breaches of the limits for small society lotteries 
 
Non-commercial gaming is permitted if it takes place at a non-commercial event, either as an incidental or 
principal activity at the event. Events are non-commercial if no part of the proceeds is for private profit or 
gain. The proceeds of such events may benefit one or more individuals if the activity is organised: 

 by, or on behalf of, a charity or for charitable purposes 

 to enable participation in, or support of, sporting, athletic or cultural activities. 
 
 
Charities and community groups should contact this Licensing Authority at Licensing@argyll-bute.gov.uk to 
see further advice. 

Page 93

mailto:Licensing@argyll-bute.gov.uk


 

 32 

APPENDIX 1 
 

Schedule of Consultees to this Policy Statement 
 

 
It was sent to all the consultees listed below and will be sent to any other interested part on request.  Therefore 
all responses will be considered and any appropriate adjustments will be made to the statement. 
 
If anyone has any queries please contact the Licensing Department, Legal & Regulatory Services, Argyll and 
Bute Council, Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT  on telephone number : 01546 604338 or by email: 
licensing@argyll-bute.gov.uk 
 
 
1. Members of Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 
 
2.  Elected Members of Argyll and Bute Council 
 
3. The Gambling Commission, Victoria Square House, Victoria Square, Birmingham, B2 4BP 
 
4. The Chief Constable, Police Scotland, 2 Clyde Gateway, French Street, Glasgow, G40 4EH 
 
5. Scottish Fire & Rescue Service, Bothwell Road, Hamilton, Lanarkshire, ML3 0EA 
 
6. Head of Development & Economic Growth, Department of Development and Infrastructure Services, 

Argyll and Bute Council, Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT  
 
7. Head of Children & Families, Community Services, Argyll and Bute Council, Kilmory, Lochgilphead, 

PA31 8RT 
 
8. Argyll and Bute Child Protection Committee, Children & Families Section, Argyll and Bute Council, 

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT  
 
9. H M Revenue and Customs, Excise Processing Teams, BX9 1GL, United Kingdom 
 
10. Associated Secretary, The Church of Scotland, 121 George Street, Edinburgh, EH2 4YN 
 
11. The National Casino Forum, Carlyle House, 235-237 Vauxhall Bridge Road, Victoria, London, SW1 

1EJ 
 
12. Association of British Bookmakers Limited, Regency House, 1-4 Warwick Street, London, W1B 5LT  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 94



 

 33 

SCHEDULE OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES 
 

GAMBLING ACT 2005 
 

Appendix 2 
 
 
 
1. Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 
 
2. The Gambling Commission, Victoria Square House, Victoria Square, Birmingham, B2 4BP 
 
3. The Chief Constable, Police Scotland, 2 Clyde Gateway, French Street, Glasgow,G40 4EH 
 
4. The Chief Fire Officer, Scottish Fire and Rescue, Central Command HQ, 123 Port Dundas 
    Street, Cowcaddans, Glasgow, G4 0ES 
  
5. The Argyll and Bute Child Protection Committee, Children and Families Section, Community  
    Services, Argyll and Bute Council, Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT 
 
6. H M Revenue & Customs, Excise Processing Teams, United Kingdom BX9 1GL 

Page 95



 

 34 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 96



 

 35 

APPENDIX 3 
 

 

Argyll and Bute Licensing Board 

 

The Gambling Act 2005 

 

Scheme of Delegation of Powers to Officials 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  
                               Page  

    

 

      

1.0  Introduction             3 

2.0 Powers delegated under the Gambling Act 2005                                  3&4 

      

      

      

      

      

      

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Page 97



 

 36 

  

  

  

  

  

  

1.0  INTRODUCTION  

  
1.1 This scheme of delegation sets out the powers delegated by Argyll and Bute 

Licensing Board to the Clerk and any Depute Clerk of the Board under:  

  

• The Gambling Act 2005 

  

1.2 In any particular case where powers are delegated to the Clerk or any Depute 

Clerk under this scheme of delegation, if it appears to them that it is appropriate for 

the power to be exercised by the Board itself then they shall be entitled to refer the 

case to the Board for the exercise of the power.  

  

  

2.0  POWERS DELEGATED UNDER THE GAMBLING ACT 2005  

  
2.1 The following powers are delegated to and exercisable by the Clerk or any Depute 

      Clerk:-  

  

2.1.1 Premises Licences  

  

• Determining an application for the variation of a premises licence 

where there are no representations.  

  

• Determining an application for transfer of a premises licence 

where there are no representations and where the application is 

accompanied by the licensee’s consent.  

  

• Determining an application for a copy of a premises licence.  

  

2.1.2 Temporary Use Notices  

  

• Giving a counter-notice under section 218(3) – whole period of 

notice exceeds statutory limit for temporary use notification.  

  

• Giving a counter-notice under section 218(5) – part of period of 

notice exceeds statutory limit for temporary use notification.  

  

Page 98



 

 37 

2.1.3 Family Entertainment Centre Gaming Machine Permits  

  

• Determining an application for a family entertainment centre 

gaming machine permit or an application for renewal of such a 

permit where no representations are made.  

  

• Determining an application for a copy of a permit.  

  

2.1.4 Club Gaming Permits and Club Machine Permits  

  

• Determining an application for grant/renewal where no objections 

are made and no grounds for refusal exist.  

  

• Determining an application to vary a permit (unless it is considered 

that the Board would refuse an application for the permit were it 

made anew).  

  

• Cancelling a permit for non payment of the annual fee.  

  

• Determining an application for a copy of a permit.  

 

  

2.1.5 Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits  

  

• Determining an application for grant/variation/transfer of a permit  

where:  

  

 no objections/representations are made;   

  

 no grounds for refusal exist; and  

  

 the permit is to be granted for the same number and 

categories of gaming machines stated in the application.  

  

• Cancelling a permit for non payment of the annual fee.  

  

• Determining an application for a copy of a permit.  

  

2.1.6 Prize Gaming Permits  

  

• Determining an application for a permit/renewal of a permit where 

no objections/representations are made.  

  

• Determining an application for a copy of a permit.  

Page 99



 

 38 

  

2.1.7 Registration of Small Society Lotteries  

  

• Determining an application for registration where no ground for 

refusal exists.  

  

• Refusing an application for registration under paragraph 47 of Part 

5 of Schedule 11 to the Act.  

  

• Cancelling a registration for non payment of the annual fee.  

  

2.2 All powers under the Gambling Act 2005 other than those set out in paragraphs  

      above shall be exercisable by the Licensing Board. This includes the approval of  

      the Gambling Policy. 
 

Page 100



Page 101 Agenda Item 9a



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103 Agenda Item 9b



This page is intentionally left blank



On-Trade Festive Licensing Hours 2022 

As in previous years the licensing board has set the period during which extended hours will be 
considered as follows: 
 
Festive Hours Period - 9th December 2022 to 2nd January 2023 (into the morning of the 3rd) 
 
There will be a general presumption in favour of extending licensing hours during the above period 
along the following lines: 
 

 Festive Hours Period – 9th December 2022 to 2nd January 2023 (into the morning of the 
3rd)  

 
For those premises with a terminal core hour of 0000 hours, extension to a limit of 0100 hours 
For those premises with a terminal core hour of 0100 hours, extension to a limit of 0200 hours  
For those premises with a terminal core hour of 0200 hours, extension to a limit of 0300 hours  

 

 Festive Holidays (24th 25th 26th December 2022 and 31st December 2022 & 1st January 
2023) 

 
Extension to a limit of 0300 hours for all on-trade premises 

 

_______________________________________________ 
 

Notes: 
Prevailing local late night conditions will still apply, such as the night-time curfew, curtailment of music at a certain 
a time and stewarding. 
 
Children:  

 Children will be allowed, under parental supervision to 0100 hours on 31st December/1st January to 
welcome the New Year, and only then for family events.  

 Normal restrictions relating to children (such as the terminal hour on all other nights covered by this 
“relaxation”) still apply. 

 
Application Timescale 
Please be aware that extended hours applications must be with the Board at least 35 days prior to the date on 
which the extended hours event is being held.  This timescale is to allow for statutory reports the Board must 
consider in determining each application. 
 
 
 

Page 105 Agenda Item 10b



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4a Hinba Coffee Shop, 62 George Street, Oban, PA34 5SD
	Hinba - Layout Plan

	4b You & Sea Marine Services Ltd. Rhu Marina, Rhu, Helensburgh, G84 8LH
	You & Sea - LSO Report

	5a Iona Craft Shop & Studio, Isle of Iona, PA76 6SJ
	Iona Craft Shop - LSO Report
	Iona Craft Shop - Layout Plan

	5b Islay Rum Distillery. Old Lemonade Factory, Port Ellen, Isle of Islay, PA42 7BZ
	Islay Rum Distillery - Layout Plan
	Sheets and Views
	A1



	6a 108 George Street, Oban, PA34 5NT
	6b Slanj, Station Road, Tarbet, G83 7DA
	Slanj - Amended Layout Plan

	6c Stratheck Holiday Caravan Park, Loch Eck, Dunoon, PA23 8SG
	6d The Anchor Tavern, Marine Road, Port Bannatyne, Isle of Bute, PA20 0LL
	The Anchor Tavern - Objection letter

	6e The Glen Bar & Restaurant, Carradale, Campbeltown, PA28 6QG
	6f The Village Shop, Luss, G83 8PA
	6g Visitor Centre Shop at Laphroaig Distillery, Port Ellen, Isle of Islay, PA42 7DU
	7a Leah McGuigan, 51B High Street, Campbeltown, PA28 6EA
	8 GAMBLING ACT 2005
	2022 Draft Gambling Policy

	9a Revocation of Personal Licences where licence holders have not undertaken the refresher training
	9b Revocation of Personal licences where licence holders have not applied to renew their licence
	10b Festive Hours Policy 2022

